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LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL

December 30, 2014

The Citizens of the City of Morrow, Georgia
The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council of the City of Morrow, Georgia

Ladies and Gentlemen:

It is a pleasure to hereby submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Morrow, Georgia, for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and
fairess of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City. To the best of our knowledge and belief,
the enclosed data are accurate in all material respects and are reported in a manner designed to present fairly the
financial position and results of operations of the various funds and account groups of the City. All disclosures
necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the City's financial activities have been included.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is written to be used and understood by a broad array of people. Itis
presented in three sections:

1) INTRODUCTORY SECTION

The introductory section, which is unaudited, includes this letter of transmittal, the City's organizational char, a
listing of the City’s principal officials, and the Government Finance Officers Association's Certificate of Achievement
for Excellence in Financial Reporting for Fiscal Year 2012-2013,

2) FINANCIAL SECTION

The financial section includes the general purpose financial statements and schedules, management discussion
and analysis, as well as the independent auditors’ report on these financial statements and additional information
pertaining to individual funds and account groups.

3) STATISTICAL SECTION
The statistical section includes pertinent financial and economic data indicating trends generally presented on a
multi- year basis.

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s report and provides
a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. The MD&A complements this
letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

The data in the report is believed to be accurate in all material respects and conforms substantially with the
standards of the GFOA program for the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting. This
report will again be submitted to the GFOA for evaluation of eligibility for the Certificate for the nineteenth
consecutive year. All necessary disclosures have been included in order to enable the reader to gain the maximum
understanding of the City's financial activity.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

Georgia statutes and law require cities to have an audit performed annually by an independent certified public
accountant. The City of Morrow's financial statements have been audited by Mauldin & Jenkins, Certified Public
Accountants, LLC. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis
for rendering and unmodified opinion that the City's financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014,



are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor's report is presented in the first component
of the financial section of this report.

Single Audit

The City of Morrow is not required to undergo an annual Single Audit in conformity with the provision of the Single
Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, *Audits of States, Local
Governments and Nonprofit Organizations.” During FY 2014, the City of Morrow did not receive federal funding at
a level which required single audit presentation; therefore, a single audit is not included in this report.

Management Discussion & Analysis

In accordance with GAAP, this Comprehensive Annual Report (CAFR) includes a narrative introduction from
management that provides an overview and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A
and should be read in conjunction with it. The City's MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the
independent auditors. The remainder of this letter provides an overview of local economic conditions and some of
the City's current and future initiatives.

THE PROFILE OF GOVERNMENT

The City of Morrow, incorporated in 1943, is located in Clayton County, GA, approximately 10 miles south of
Atlanta’s Hartsfield International Airport. According to the 2010 Census, the City has a residential population of
6,445 (an increase of 32% over the 2000 Census) and Clayton County has a population of 259,424, which
contributes to the 70,000 plus visitors who find themselves in the City of Morrow on a daily basis.

Morrow operates under the Council/City Manager form of government. The City of Morrow is empowered to levy a
property tax on both real and personal properties located within its boundaries. It is also empowered by the State
to extend its corporate limits by annexation, which occurs periodically when deemed appropriate by the governing
Council. Policy making and legislative authority are vested in the governing council, which consists of a Mayor and
four Council members. The governing council is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances, adopting
budgets, appointing committees, and hiring both the City Manager and legal counsel. The City Manager is
responsibie for carrying out the day to day operations of government and for appointing the heads of the various
departments. The Council members are elected on a no-partisan basis, and serve staggered four year terms.
Elections are held every two years, with the Mayor and two Council members on aone cycle and the other two
Council members on the next cycle.

The City's organization includes six major departments: Administration, Administrative Support Services, Fire,
Police, Public Works and Services (including E911 Communications), and Planning & Economic Development. The
City Manager is appointed by the Mayor and Council to directly supervise these departments. The City provides
many services to Morrow's residents and visitors, including police and fire protection, emergency medical service,
emergency communications, code enforcement, public works, sanitation, and planning economic development
services, Each of the service areas function as departments of the City and therefore are included as an integral
part of the City's financial statements.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Morrow's financial ptanning and control. The annual
budget process begins with Council Planning Sessions in February to discuss plans for the upcoming fiscal year.
After the Council Planning Sessions, all departments of the City of Morrow are required to submit request for
appropriations to the City Manager on or about March 9™. The City Manager uses the requests as a starting point
for developing a proposed budget, which is then presented to the City Council by the end of April. The City Council
is required to hold public hearings on the proposed budget and to adopt a final budget no later than June 30 (the
close of the City's fiscal year). The annual budget is prepared by fund, function, and department: for example:
General Fund, Public Safety, and Police Department. Department Directors are not allowed to make transfers
between appropriated accounts. Appropriations between Departments are not allowed, except by specific action of
the City Council. Budget to actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individua! fund for which an
appropriated budget has been adopted. For general fund, this comparison extends to the department level.
Budget to actual comparisons for all governmental and enterprise funds {business-type activities) are presented in
the other Required Supplementary Information (RSI) section of the financial statements.



ECONOMIC FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered from the
broader perspective of the specific environment in which the City operates. The City of Morrow's local economy
has primarily been driven by a predominantly retail business sector. With a major regional retail mall within the city
limits, the City continues to cope with the current financial recession and all current economic predictions point to a
very slow economic recovery. Locally, we are experiencing stagnant retail sales that will keep occupation tax
revenues and sales tax revenues flat, at best. Additionally, we continue to see major retail store closings due to
national retailer's weak balance sheets and changes in their business strategies.

Construction by the Georgia Department of Transportation was completed in 2012 on the $46 million construction
contract for the Highway 54 and Interstate 75 interchange and related bridges. The improvements include
expanded lanes that have reduced traffic delays, a new bridge for Lee Street that has reduced congestion on
Highway 54, and high mast lighting that has improved safety and visibility. Since the City of Morrow is
geographically centered at this interstate interchange, completion of this construction is expected to make the City
of Morrow more appealing and provide potential business growth to the area with greater accessibility and
improved traffic flow. The opening of the new International Terminal/Concourse this past year at Hartsfield-Jackson
International Airport with access to Interstate 75 within 10 minutes of the City of Morrow offers new commercial and
economic growth opportunities.

The City of Morrow has traditionally produced a conservative budget and this has been extremely beneficial in the
current economic market. We believe Georgia and the City of Morrow are seeing a positive growth in our
economies, albeit very slowly.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

During 2014, the City of Morrow achieved significant accomplishments that will have positive impacts on our city's
continued economic growth and development:

Strategic Stakeholder Relationship Building Efforts

Comprehensive Strategic Planning Committee for Clayton County Economic Development
Clayton County Board of Commissioners

Reynolds Nature Preserve

Negotiation of 2015 Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax agreement with County and other
Municipalities Completed and approved by voters.

Clayton County Public Image Coalition

Georgia Power Company

« Clayton County Economic Development and Film Office

infrastructure Developments
« Engineering and Design Phase of Pedestrian Pathway System Phase 3 continued

« Construction Completed and Funded by CDBG Grant for Connectivity of Pedestrian Pathway System to
Reynolds Nature Preserve
s Milton Daniel Park Renovation Grant Award Agreement

Service Enhancements
o Local Business Development Initiatives
o Enhancement of Social Media Campaign on Facebook
o Annual Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting

Planning Initiatives

» Submitted Applications with Atlanta Regional Commission for review and rewrite of all Zoning and Signage
Coding improvement to better facilitate long term planning and economic development initiatives
Short Term Work Program Updates for the Georgia Department of Community Affairs
C,;)mpleted Series of Public Meetings for citizens and business owners for input on future zoning code
changes

« Discussions and Investigation for creating multi-jurisdictional Community Improvement Districts
Commence the development of first ever Tri-City Urban Redevelopment Plan with the cities of Forest Park,
Lake City, and Morrow.



Funding Partnerships
» Department of Transportation: Transportation Enhancement Grant: Phase 1l of Jester's Creek Path System
» Local Government Risk Management Services, Inc; Safety Grant: turnout gear and security upgrades
* Georgia Department of Transportation; Local Maintenance & Improvement Grant; street paving

All of these initiatives align the City of Morrow toward achieving a more vibrant community that will attract new
businesses and residents for future growth and redevelopment. With these growth initiatives based on study data,
the City looks forward to more balanced revenue streams coming from its governmental and business-type
activities.

LONG TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING

Relevant Financial Policies and Practices

Throughout the year, the Finance Department administers and monitors the financial policies outlined by the City
Council. These policies address fund balances, the use of one time revenues, budgeting, issuance of debt,
purchasing and procurement, capital expenditures, cash and investment management, and accounting practices.
In totality, these policies formulate the core criteria for which internal evaluations of performance occur, Each year
during the annual budgeting planning and review, the Finance Officer is responsible for reporting and addressing
the financial management of the policies and practices.

Budgetary Controls

In addition to internal controls, the City maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is
to assure compliance with the legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the
Morrow City Council. Activities of the General Fund, Emergency Communications Fund, and General Capital
Improvements Fund alf appear in the City’s annual appropriated budget. The level of budgetary control (being the
level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is established by department within an
individual fund.

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, the City continues
to meet its responsibility for sound financial management.

Planni conomi men

The Department of Planning and Economic Development began a long term planning project to review and rewrite
codes and ordinances related to zoning and signage for the city in an effort to foster future development and
redevelopment within the City. The current economy and changing demographics of the area continue to impact
the City's long time historic trend as “the” major retail center in the Southern Crescent of Atlanta. We must begin
planning efforts for what our future redevelopment might entail.

In conjunction with our neighboring municipalities of Forest Park and Lake City, as well as the Carl Vinson Institute
of Government, we have begun exploring the possibilities of creating the first ever Tri-Cities Urban Redevelopment
Plan in Georgia that would include parts of all three municipalities along the Highway 54 business corridor. This
Tri-Cities Urban Redevelopment Plan would provide incentives for new businesses to open within the
redevelopment area and serve as a stimulus to future redevelopment of our urban redevelopment areas.

AWARDS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Morrow, Georgia, for its comprehensive annual
financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national
award, recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local government financial
reports,

In order to be awarded the Certificate of Achievement, a governmental unit must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR), whose contents conform to program
standards. The CAFR must satisfy both accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
and applicable legal requirements,

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The City has received a Certificate of
Achievement for the last twenty consecutive fiscal years (1994-2013). We believe our current Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program'’s requirements, and we are
submitting this report to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

iv
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, LLC

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Members
of the City Council
Morrow, Georgia

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Morrow, Georgia (the “City™), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Morrow, Georgia's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statemnents that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Govemnment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements,

300 MULBERRY STREET, SUITE 300 « POST OFFICE BOX 1877+ MACON, GEORGIA 312021877 « 478-464.8000 » FAX 478-464-805] » www mjcpa com
MEMBERS OF THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Morrow, Georgia as
of June 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and
the respective budgetary comparisons for the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America,

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s Discussion
and Analysis (on pages 4 through 12) and the Schedule of Funding Progress on page 51 be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements,
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that coliectively comprise
the City of Morrow, Georgia's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements, schedules of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance-budget to
actual, schedule of expenditures of special purpose local option sales lax proceeds, as required by the Official
Code of Georgia 48-8-121, and stalistical section listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.




The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, the schedules of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balance-budget to actual, and the schedule of expenditures of special purpose local option sales
tax proceeds are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, the schedules of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balance-budget to actual and the schedule of expenditures of special purpose local option sales
tax praceeds are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 30, 2014, on
our consideration of the City of Morrow, Georgia's internal contro! over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the City of Momow, Georgia's internal controf over financial reporting and
compliance.

7%@&%@ £ ), KK C
Macon, Georgia
December 30, 2014



CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the City of Morrow, we offer readers of the City of Morrow’s financial statements this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Morrow for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. it is
designed to give the reader an objective and easily readable analysis of the City’s financial performance. The
primary intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the City’s financial performance as a whole; readers
should also review the letter of transmittal, notes to the basic financial statements, and the financial statements to
enhance their understanding of the City’s financial performance.

Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for FY 2014 are as follows:

« The assets of the City of Morrow exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by $27,687,904 (net
position).

s The City's total net position increased $110,973, current and other assets decreased by $585,269, capital
assets decreased by $539,289, while other liabilities decreased by $57,869, and long term liabilities
decreased by $1,177,662.

o As of the close of the current fisca! year, the City of Morrow's governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $7,969,058, a decrease of $821,847 in comparison to the prior year.
Approximately 31.5% of this total amount, or $2,508,181, is available for spending at the government's
discretion (unassigned fund balance).

« At the end of the current fiscal year, fund balance for the General Fund was $6,509,804 or 62.1% of total
general fund expenditures for the fiscal year.

s As of the close of the current fiscal year, the fund balance for the SPLOST fund was $1,369,098, which was
restricted for other capital projects.

« Atthe end of the current fiscal year, the fund balance for Other Gavernmental Funds was $90,155.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This comprehensive annual financial report consists of the City of Morrow's basic financial statements comprised of
three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3} notes to those
financial statements. The statements are organized so the reader can understand the City of Morrow as a financial
whole, or as an entire operating entity.

Government-wide Financial Statements, The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all the City's assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as “net position”. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a
useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City's net position changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in
this statement for some items that will anly result in cash flows in future fiscal periods {e.g., uncollected taxes and

earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues (government activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the City has both governmental and business-type
activities:

*  Governmental Activities ~ Most of the City's programs and services are reported here including
general government, judicial, public safety, public works, and economic development. Sales taxes,
property taxes, occupation taxes, and fines and forfeitures finance most of these activities.

* Business-Type Activities - The City charges fees to cover the services it provides related to
sanitation services. These activities are reported as business-type activities under proprietary
funds.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 13 and 14 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements provide detailed information about the City's major funds. A fund is a grouping of related
accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or
objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance related legal requirements. All the funds of the City can be divided into two categories:
governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements. Most of the City's basic services are accounted for in governmental funds. These funds
focus on how assets can readily be converted into cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at year-end that
will be available for spending in the next year. Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method calied
modified accrual accounting, which provides a short-term spending focus. As a result, the governmental fund
financial statements give the reader a detailed short-term view that helps him or her determine if there are more or
less financial resources available to finance the City's programs. The relationship between government activities
(reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is described in a
recanciliation that is a part of the fund financial statements.




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The City of Morrow adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General Statutes. The budget
is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of the City, the management of the City, and
the decisions of the Board about which services to provide and how to pay for them. It also authorizes the City to
obtain funds from identified sources to finance these current period activities, The budgetary statement provided for
the General Fund demonstrates how well the City complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the City
succeeded in providing the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The budgetary comparison
statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using the same format, language, and
classifications as the Statement of Revenue and Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances. The statement
shows four columns: 1) the original budget as adopted by the board; 2) the final budget as amended by the board,
3) the actual resaurces, charges to appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund; and 4) the difference
or variance between the final budget and the actual resources and charges.

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditures for
particular purposes. The City of Morrow has four Special Revenue Funds: (1) Confiscated Assets Fund, (2)
Hotel/Motel Tax Fund, (3) Excise Tax Fund, and (4) Emergency Communication Fund.

Proprietary Funds
Proprietary funds are activities that a City operates similar to a business in that it attempts to recover costs through

charges to the user. The City of Morrow has only one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise Funds are used to report
the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City of
Morrow uses two enterprise funds to account for its sanitation activity and conference center activity. Proprietary
fund statements use the accrual basis of accounting similar to the City-wide statemenis.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 20 - 22 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 23 —

50 of this report.



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as one usefu! indicator of a government's financial condition. The
assets of the City of Morrow exceeded liabilities by $27,687,904 as of June 30, 2014. The City’s net position
increased by $110,973 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. The increase in net position was primarily due to
decreases in cash and investment balances and capital assets of $1,124,558, decreases in liabilities of $1,235,531.
The largest portion of the City's net position (71%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings,
machinery, and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding. Although
the City of Morrow's investment in its capital assets is reported net of the outstanding related debt, the resources
needed to repay that debt must be provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate
these liabilities,

City of Morrow's Net Position
Juna 30, 2014
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Current and other assets $ 8757458 $ 9367933 § 263,308 $ 238102 § 9020766 § 9,606,035
Capital assets, net 17,963,650 18,371,630 4,443,209 4,574,608 22,406,949 22,946,238
Total assels 26,721,108 27,739,563 4,706,607 4,812,710 31,427,715 32,562,273
Other liabilities 444,784 527,859 204,511 179,305 649,295 707,164
Leng-term liabllities
oulstanding 3,090,516 4,268,178 “ - 3,090,516 4.218,178
Total Jiabilities 3,535,300 4,796,037 204,511 179,305 3,739,811 4,975,342
Net position;
Net investment in
capital assels 15,145,014 14,388,529 4,443,209 4,574,608 19,588,313 18,863,137
Restricted 1,459,254 1,301,836 - . 1,459,254 1,301,836
Unrestricled 6,581,540 7,253,161 58,797 58,797 6,640,337 7,311,958
Total nel position $ 23185808 § 22943526 S 4,602,096 § 4633405 § 27687804 § 27,576,031
B ] STTTTT—— | ———————

An additional portion of the City's net position (5.3%) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions
on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position ($6,640,337) may be used to meet
the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

Governmental Activities

Governmental activities during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, increased the City of Morrow's net position by
$242,282. Business-type activities during the same period decreased net position by $131,309 for a total increase
in net position of $110,973. Public safety expenses of $6,063,898 represent 53% of the total governmental
expenses. Interest expense of $130,073 represents 1.1% of total governmental expenses. Interest expense is
attributable to debt financed for the Morrow Tourist Center building and the Morrow Conference Center,




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Revenues:

Program revenues
Charges for services
Operating grants and

contributions
Capital grants and
contributions

General reverwes:
Properly taxes
Sales taxes
Franchise taxes
Other laxes
Miscellaneous
Unrestricted invesiment

eamings
Gain on sale of
capital assets
Tolal revenues

Expenses:
General govemment
Judicial
Public safety
Public works
Economic development
(nterest on long-term debl
Sanilation
Marrow Center
Total expenses

Increase (decrease) in
net position before transiers

Transfers
Change in net posilion

Net position, beginning of year
Net position, end of year

City of Morrow’s Changes in Net Position

June 30, 2014
Governmental Activities Business4ype Aclivilies Total

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
3,765820 § 4048967 $ 1,194268 § 1,117,124 4,960,088 $ 5,166,091
257,600 215,044 - - 257,600 215,044
1,445,656 1,615,952 - - 1,445,656 1,615,952
2,431,897 1,926,089 . . 2,431,997 1,926,089
1,609,741 1,707,532 - - 1,608,741 1,707,532
636,838 659,513 “ 636,838 659,513
1,363,045 1,045,371 - " 1,363,045 1,045,371
77,897 140,608 » » 77,997 140,608
2,852 3,589 - . 2,952 3,580
- 17,273 - - - 17,273
11,591,646 11,379,938 1,194,268 1,117,124 12,785,914 12.497,062
2,659,889 2,330,884 - - 2,659,889 2,330,884
207,361 299,269 - - 207,361 299,269
6,063,898 5,837,934 - “ 6,063,898 5,837,934
2,012,159 2,250,389 - 2,012,159 2,250,389
319,228 295,928 - - 319,228 295,928
130,073 171,835 - - 130,073 171,835
- - 891,957 837,610 891,957 837,610
- - 390,376 411,498 390,376 411,498
11,392,608 11,186,239 1,282,333 1,249,108 12,674,941 12,435,347
199,038 193,699 (88,065) {131,984) 110,973 61,715
43,244 (675) (43,244) 675 - “
242,282 193,024 {131,309) (131,309) 110,973 61,715
22,943,526 22,750,502 4,633,405 4,764,714 27,576,931 27,515,216
§ 23.185808 § 22,043,526 S 4,502,096 S 4633405 © 27,687,904 S 27,576,931

—————————— S m—— S p—————— P———— e ee—————




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Bus - iviti

The business-type activities of the City consist of the Sanitation Department and the Morrow Conference Center.
The Sanitation Department provides trash collection services to the city residents and businesses. The revenue of
the Sanitation Department is derived from user fees charged for services related o solid waste disposal. The
Morrow Conference Center was opened and began offering conference space and services during the current fiscal
year. The revenue of the Morrow Conference Center is derived from user fees charged for conference space rental
and other conference center services.

Einancial Analysis of the City’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Morrow uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds
The focus of the City of Morrow’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and

balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City of Morrow's financing requirements.
Specifically, unreserved fund balance can be a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for
spending at the end of the fiscal year. At June 30, 2014, the total Governmental Funds of the City of Morrow
reported a combined fund balance of $7,969,058, a 9.4% percent decrease from the previous year, primarily due to
General Fund expenditures exceeding revenues by $1.5 million. The SPLOST fund balance increased $110,464 in
2014.

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City of Morrow. At the end of fiscal year 2014, the fund
balance of the General Fund was $6,509,804. Of this amount, $2,508,181 represents unassigned fund balance,
which is available as working capital for current spending in accordance with the purposes of the specific funds.
The majority of the General Fund balance, $4,001,623, is termed non-spendable to indicate that it is not available
for new spending because it is already committed for prepaid expenditures {$238,383), assets held for resale
($341,657), and advances to the Downtown Development Authority ($3,421,583). As a measure of the General
Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund
expenditures. Unassigned governmental fund balance represents 24% of total governmental funds expenditures,
while total fund balance represents 76% of that same amount. Other Governmental Funds had a positive fund
balance of $90,155. These funds include special revenue funds.

City of Morrow's Governmental Fund Balance

June 30, 2014
2014 2013
General Fund 3 6,509,804 $ 7,489,169
SPLOST Fund 1,369,099 1,258,635
Other Governmental Funds 90,155 43,201

Total Governmental Fund Balance $ 7,869,058 § 8,791,005




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Proprietary Funds

The City of Morrow's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
statements but in more detail. Other factors conceming the finances of this fund have already been addressed in
the discussion of the City of Morrow’s business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights
= The City's budget is prepared according to Georgia law. The most significant budget fund is the General
Fund.
»  For the General Fund, the actual revenues of $8,959,261 were higher than the final budget amount of
$8,893,899 by $65,362. The increase was primarily due to increases in fines & forfeitures revenues.
e The General Fund actual expenditures of $10,489,077 were less than the budgeted amount of $10,661,879
by $172,802. The decrease was primarily due to decreases in capital outlays and general administration.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets
The City of Morrow's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30,

2014, totals $22,4086,949 (net of accumulated depreciation), a $539,289 decrease from the previous year. This net
decrease includes net additions of capital assets of $1,197,382, and a decrease of $1,321,323 for FY 2014
depreciation expense. These assets include buildings, roads and bridges, land, machinery and equipment, park
facilities, and vehicles. The investment in capital assets for business-type activities includes the Morrow
Conference Center.

Capital asset additions, disposals, and changes during the year include the following:

e Land ($523,689) added, Land sold ($284,039)

« Buildings ($179,304)

« Vehicles ~ Police Department ($282,154)

« Pedestrian Pathway Systems ($202,235)

« Computers — Disposal of fully depreciated equipment and software over ten years old ($432,907)
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

City of Morrow's Capital Assats, net of Accumulated Dapreciation
June 30, 2014

Governmental Activities Business -lype Activities Total

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Land S 5013235 s 4,773,585 S - $ - $ 5,013,235 $ 4,773,585
Bulldings, grounds

and improvements 2,307,012 2,257,189 4,435,742 4,560,693 6,742,754 6,817,882
Machinery and equipment 264,904 331,559 4814 5,689 268.718 337.248
Furmniture & fixtures - - 2,743 8,226 2,743 8,226
Infrastructure in process 201,653 171,461 - - 201,653 171,461
Infrastructure 8,725,314 9.409,488 “ . 8,725,314 9,400,488
Vehicles 868,169 770,703 - “ 868,169 770,703
Computer Software 12,945 17,822 - . 12,945 17,822
Park Facilities 570,418 639,823 . . 570,418 639,823
Total § 17.963650 S 18,371,630 S 4443200 3 4574608 S 22406940 5 2I546335

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in Note 5 of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Long-term Debt

As of June 30, 2014, the City of Morrow had total outstanding debt of $3,090,516 comprised of $1,350,000 in bonds
payable, $1,468,636 related to capital ieases on the Morrow Tourist Center building and new equipment and
$271,880 in compensated absences balances. The increase in capital leases for FY2014 is due to the acquisition
of nine Ford Interceptor Police Cars via lease purchase in the amount of $292,154,

City of Morrow’s Quistanding Long-Term Liabilities
June 30, 2014

Governmental Aclivities Business -type Activities Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Capilal leases $ 14688636 § 1,328,101 § s, 8 - $ 1468636 S 1,328,101
Bonds payable 1,350,000 2,655,000 . . 1,350,000 2,655,000
Compensated absences 271,880 285,077 - - 271,880 285,077
Total $ 3,090,516 $ 4,268,178 $ - S - S 3,080,516 S 4,268,178

Additional information on the City's long-term debt can be found in Note 6 of the Notes to the Financial Statements.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Currently Known Conditions Affecting the Future Operations

The stalled overall economy continues to keep tax revenues basically fiat from most sources. Commercial real
estate values continue to decline with the loss of leases with major retailers, This trend continues to challenge our
future economic growth. The completion of the new interstate interchange at |-75 and Highway 54 has improved
traffic flow through the City and seems to be drawing new business and investment in commercial properties within
the City. The completion of the new International Concourse with direct access off of Interstate 75 to Hartsfield
Jackson Allanta International Airport will be major factors influencing future development and redevelopment
opporturities within the City of Morrow. Over the past two years, the City has seen increased activity in revenues
for permits for new residential construction and increased activity in new business investment, which is helping to
offset some of the negative impacts of additional closures of existing big box retailers. Since the end of FY2014, a
new call center operation which has plans to create approximately 1,000 new jobs within the city, has started
renovations of the former JC Penney space at Southlake Mall and plans to be operating in early 2015.

Factors Affecting the FY 2013 - 14 Budget

The City Council of City of Morrow considered many factors when approving the City's 2015 budget and are very
aware of present economic conditions, forecasts for a very slow recovery, and the effects on its citizens and the
levels of service provided by the City. The City Council maintained property tax rates at 9.5 mils for the FY2015
budget.

Annually, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the coming fiscal year
which is required to be approved by June 30. Public hearings are held prior to adoption to allow citizens the
opportunity to comment on the proposed budget.

Budgets are adopted for the General Fund, the Hotel/Motel Tax Fund, the Confiscated Assets Fund, the Rental Car
Excise Fund, the ES11 Communications Fund, the SPLOST Fund, the Sanitation Fund, and The Morrow Center
Fund. Budgets for the Enterprise funds are prepared for planning and control purposes only. The legal level of
budgetary control is the department level, with the City Council being the only body authorized to make
amendments to the budget. During the year, no changes were made to ease in budget appropriations between the
ariginal budget and the final amended budget for the City's General Fund.

Contacting the City’s Financial Management

This report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all those with an interest in the City's
finances. Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for additional information
should be directed to the City Manager, City of Morrow, 1500 Morrow Rd, Morrow, Georgia 30260, 770-961-4002 or
via email at sylviaredic@cityofmorrow.com.
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2014
Primasy Government ComponentUnits
Morrow
Total Downtown Business Morrow
Governmental  Business-type Primary Developmenl and Tourism Housling
ASSETS Activities Activities Gavernment Authority Assoclation Authority
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2485499 3 76,058 $ 2561558 § 126,929 § 19159 § m
Investrments 1,348,137 - 1,348,137 - - -
Taxes receivable 444,067 - 444,067 - - -
Accounts receivable 27,729 127,758 155,488 840,133 23,064 -
Due from primary govemment - - » - 31,932 -
Due from other governments 500,603 - 508,803 - - -
Prepaid expenses 238,383 - 238,383 - 313 .
Internal balances (59,480) $9,480 - - - -
Advance from componeni unit 3,421,582 - 3,421,583 - - -
Assels held for resale 341,657 - 341,657 - “ 75,000
Capital assats:
Nondepreciable 5,214,888 . 5,214,888 7,584,671 - -
Depreciable, net of accumulated
depreciation 12,748,762 4,443,298 17,192,061 12,439,219 s -
Total assets 28,721.108 4,708,607 31,427.715 21,002,952 74,468 75771
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 227,379 89,693 317,072 32,260 14,126 -
Accrued liabilities 185,473 1,766 187,23¢ 22,305 28,132 -
Uneamed ravenues - 100,677 100,677 8,080 - -
Customer deposits payable - 12,375 12375 - - .
Oue to component unit 31,832 “ 31832 - - -
Advance to primary gavemment - “ - 3,421,583 . -
Capital leases due within ane year 191,848 - 191,848 - “ .
Capital leases due in more than one year 1,276,688 - 1,276,688 - - -
Notes payable due within one year ~ - . 82,527 - -
Notes payabls due in more than one year - - B 817,810 - -
Bonds payabla due within one year 1,350,000 . 1,350,000 517,345 . -
Bonds payable due in more than one year - - . 7,719,555 - -
Compensated absences due within one year 244,700 - 244700 - - =
Compensated absences dus in more
than ene year 27,180 - 27,180 - - -
Total liabilities 3535300 204,511 3730811 12.721,265_ 43,258 -
NET POSITION
Netinvestment in capital assets 15,145,014 4,443,209 16,588,313 10,786,853 - -
Restricted for law enforcemant 80,155 - 90,155 - - -
Restricted for other capita! projects 1,369,099 - 1,369,089 - . -
Unrestricted 6,581,540 58,707 6,640,337 (2,515,166} 31,210 75,771
Total net position $ 23785808 § 4502,086  27.607.904 § 0281887 531370 $ 7871

The accompanying notes are an integrat part of thesa financial statements.
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2014
Othear Totals
SPLOST Governmental Governmental
ASSETS General Fund Funds Funds
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1258763 $ 1121084 § 105842 § 2,485,499
Investments 1,348,137 - - 1,348,137
Taxes receivable 177,756 - 266,311 444 067
Accounts receivable 1,288 - 26,441 27,729
Advance to component unit 3,421,583 - - 3,421,583
Due from other govemments 261,888 248,005 - 509,893
Due from other funds “ “« 32,391 32,391
Prepaid expendilures 238,383 - - 238,383
Assets held for resate 341,857 - - 341,657
Total assefs S 7049455 S 1360008 § 430,785 § 8,849,339
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable S 186,463 § ~ 8 40916 § 227,379
Acctrued liabliities 160,764 . 8,206 168,970
Due to component unit 31,832 - " 31,932
Due to other funds 54,434 - 37,447 91,881
Total liabilities 433,593 - 86,569 520,162
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavallable revenue - property taxes 106,058 “ “ 106,058
Unavailable revenue - hotel motel taxes - - 254,061 254,061
Tolal deferred inflows of resources 106,058 - 254,081 360,119
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:
Prepaid expenditures 238,383 - - 238,383
Advances 3,421,583 . - 3,421,583
Assets held for resale 341,857 - . 341,657
Restricted for;
Law enforcement - - 90,155 90,155
Other capital projects - 1,369,098 . 1,369,099
Unassigned: 2,508,181 - - 2,508,181
Total fund balances 6,500,804 1,369,099 90,155 7,969,058
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and fund balances $ 7049455 § 1360098 S 430,785
Amounts reperted for governmental activities in the statement of nel position are different because:
Capital assets used in govemmental activities are nol financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 17,963,650
Other long-term assels are not avallable to pay for current-period expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. 360,119
Certain liabilities are nat due and payable in the currenl period and are therefore not reparied In the funds. (3.107.019)
Net position of governmental activities $ 23,185,808

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Other Totals
SPLOST Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
Revenues
Property taxes § 2399458 S - - 8 2,398,459
Other taxes 2,042,084 - 676,631 2,718,725
Charges for services 332,151 - 139,912 472,083
Licenses and permits 1,070,238 - - 1,070,238
Intergovernmental 721,119 1,442,458 . 2,163,577
Franchise fees 636,838 - - 636,838
Fines and forfeitures 1,676,448 - 83,552 1,760,000
Interest revenue 2917 3,198 35 6,150
Rental income 65,237 - - 65,237
Other revenues 22,760 - - 22,760
Total revenues 8,950,261 1,445,656 900,130 11,305,047
Expenditures
Current:
General govemment 2.984,872 “ 2,984,872
Judicial 208,317 - - 206,317
Public safety 5,765,461 - 316,457 6,081,918
Public works 1,242,745 0 . 1,242,745
Economic development - B 321,708 321,708
Capital outtay . 30,192 » 30,192
Debt service:
Principal 151,661 1,305,000 1,456,661
interest 138,021 - - 138,021
Total expendilures 10,489,077 1,335,192 638,165 12,462,434
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures {1,529,818) 110.464 261,965 (1,157,387)
Other financing sources (uses)
‘Transfers In 492,793 - 139,012 632,705
Teansfers out (234,538) . {354,923) (589,461)
Proceeds from capital lease 292,196 - - 292,196
Total olher financing sources {(uses) 550,451 - _{215.011) 335,440
Net change in fund balances (979,365) 110,464 46,954 (821,947)
Fund batances, baginning of year 7,489,169 1,258,635 43,201 8,791,008
Fund balances, end of year $ 6509804 S 1368088 § 90155 § 7,969,068

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the statement of aclivities are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Governmental funds report capital oullays as expenditures. However, in the stalement of activities the cost of
those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as deprecialion expense. This is the
amount by which depreciation exceeded capiial outlays in the current period.

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets {i.e., sales, trade-ins, donations) Is to
decrease net position,

Revenues in the stalement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported as
revenues in the funds.

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment
of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net position. This amount is the net effect of these differences In the
treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Some expenses reported in the statement of aclivities do not require the use of current financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financlal statements.
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Revenues:

Property laxes
Other taxes
Charges for servicas
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Franchise fees
Fines and forfeitures
Inlerest revenue
Rental income
Other revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Currant:

General governmant:
Mayor / Commission
Elections
General administration
Finance
Economic development
Capital outlay

Total general government

Judicial:
Municipal court

Public safety:
Police
Fire
Capital outlay
Total public safety

Public works:
Administration
Capital outlay
Total public works
Dabt service
Total expenditures
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures

{Continued)

Varlance
Budgeted Amounts with Final
Origlnal Final Actual Budget
2,336,473 2,458,458 $ 2,399.459 {58,999)
2,175,024 2,025,024 2,042,094 17,070
247,324 327,324 332,151 4,827
1,099,438 1,099,438 1,070,238 (29,200)
514,298 686,298 721,118 34,821
658,540 658,540 636,838 (21,702)
2,330,025 1,600,025 1,676,448 76,423
2112 2112 2,917 805
26,512 26,512 55,237 28,725
10,168 10,168 22,760 12,592
9,399,914 8,893,899 8,959,261 65,362
214,495 220,795 218,195 2,600
3,000 3,000 2,189 841
1,047,205 1,303,205 1,263,867 39,338
555,588 545,588 534,614 10,974
175,777 252,277 263,014 {10,737)
- 703,000 702,993 7
1,996,065 3,027,865 2,984,872 42,993
252,710 209,710 206,317 3.393
3,056,823 2,985,823 2,983,896 1,927
2,466,932 2,499,932 2,489 411 10,521
- 293,000 292,154 846
5,522,755 5,778,755 5,765,461 13,294
1,193,481 1,082,481 1,070,702 11,779
97628 269628 172,043 97,585
1,291,109 1,352,109 1,242,745 108,364
502.440 293,440 289,682 3,758
9,565,079 10,661,879 10,489,077 172,802
(165,185) {1,767.980) {1.529,816) 238,164
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Variance
Budgeted Amounts with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
Other financing sources {uses)

Transfers in S 382,714 $ 400,714 $ 492,793 $ 92,079
Transfers out {217.,549) (217,549) (234,538) (16,989)
Proceeds from capital lease - 292,196 202,196 “
Total other financing sources {uses) 165,165 475,361 550,451 75,090
Net change in fund balances - {1,292.619) (979,365) 313,254
Fund balances, beginning of year 7,489,169 7,489,169 7,489,169 .
Fund balances, end of year ] 7,489,169 ) 65,196,550 $ 6,500804 S 313,254

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2014
Sanitation Morrow Centar
Fund Fund Totals
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3322 § 72737 8§ 76,059
Accounts receivable 114,052 13,707 127,759
Due from other funds 37,447 22,043 59,490
Total current assels 154,821 108,487 263,308
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Capital assets - depreciable, net - 4,443,299 4,443,299
Total noncurrent assets - 4,443,299 4,443,299
Total assets 154,821 4,551,786 4,706,607
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 82,272 7.421 89,693
Accrued liabilities - 1,766 1,766
Customer deposils payable . 12,375 12,375
Uneamed revenues 72,548 28,128 100,877
Total current liabilities 154,821 49,690 204,511
NET POSITION
Investment in capital assels - 4,443,209 4,443,299
Unrestricted - 58,797 58,797
Total net position $ - $ 4,502,096 S 4,502,096

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Sanitation Morrow Center
Fund Fund Totals
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services 3 1.029.827 § 164441  § 1,194,268
Total operaling revenues 1,028,827 164,441 1,184,268
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services . 84,439 84,439
Purchased or contracted services 891,957 174,628 1,066,585
Depreciation - 131,309 131,309
Tola! operating expenses 891,957 390,376 1,282,333
Operaling income (loss) 137,870 (225,935) (88,065)
TRANSFERS
Transfers in - 94,626 94,626
Transfers out (137,870) - {137,870)
Total transfers (137,870) 94,626 (43,244)
Change in net position - {131,309) (131,309)
NET POSITION, beginning of year - 4,633,405 4,633,405
NET POSITION, end of year $ ~§ 4502,096 § 4,502,096

The accompanying notas are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Sanitation Morrow Center
Fund Fund Totals
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Recelpls from customers and users $ 1,021,207 § 146,097 § 1,167,304
Paymenis to suppliers (883,336) (158,043) (1,041,379)
Payments to employees - (84,439) (84,439)
Net cash provided by (used in} operating activities 137.871 {96,385) 41,486
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING AGTIVITIES
Transfers {137,870) 94,626 (43,244)
Net cash provided by {used in) noncapital financing activilies (137,870) 94,626 (43,244)
Change in cash and cash equivalents 1 (1,759) {1,758)
Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year 3,321 74,496 77,817
End of year $ 3322 § 72737 § 76,059

Reconclliation of oparating income {loss) to net cash provided by
{used In) operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ 137,870 S {225,935) $ (88,065)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss} to net cash
provided by (used in} operating activities:

Depreciation - 131,309 131,308
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase in accounts receivable (44,347) (9,176) (53,523)
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds 35,727 {9,168) 26,559
Increase in accounts payable 8,918 1,126 10,041
Decrease in accrued liabilities (284) - (294)
Increase in unearned revenue - 14,034 14,034
Increase in customer deposits - 1,425 1,425
Net cash provided by (used in) operating aclivilies $ 137871 § (96,385) § 41,486

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the City of Morrow, Georgia (the “City") have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP)
as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles. The more significant of the City’s accounting policies are described below.

A. The Financial Reporting Entity

The City was incorporated in 1943 and operates under an elected Council-Manager form of
government. The City Manager is the head of the administrative branch of government. As such,
he is responsible for the day-to-day operations of city government. The legislative branch of the
City is vested in the Mayor and four (4) Council members with an appointed City Manager. The
City provides the following services and operations as authorized by its charter: public safety
(police and fire); highways and streets; sanitation; parks and recreation; community development;
planning and zoning; and general administrative services. As required by accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, these financial statements present the City and
its component units, legally separate entities for which the City is financially accountable.

Based upon criteria set forth by Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 14
and as amended by GASB Statement 39 and GASB Statement 61, the City was determined to
have the following component units as of June 30, 2014.

Morrow Business and Tourism Association. The Morrow Business and Tourism Association,
Inc. (MBTA) is a vital economic partner for the City of Morrow. Tourism contracts between the
MBTA and the City provide economies of scale, resource efficiencies, and employee benefit
packages that neither party would be able to achieve on their own. The City provides for a
substantial portion of the MBTA's budget and appoints a voting majority of the MBTA's Board. The
MBTA is presented as a discretely presented component unit.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
A. The Financial Reporting Entity (Continued)

City of Morrow Downtown Development Authority. The City of Morrow Downtown
Development Authority (DDA) was formed during the year ended June 30, 2004, to become the
City's redevelopment tool for commercial revitalization. Property acquisition, renovation, and
demolition are only a few priorities of the DDA, The City provides a substantial portion of the
DDA's budget and appoints a voting majority of the DDA’s Board. The DDA is presented as a
discretely presented component unit.

City of Morrow Housing Authority. The City of Morrow Housing Authority (Authority) was formed
during the year ended June 30, 2009, to provide affordable housing to the citizens of Morrow. The
City provides a substantial portion of the Autherity's budget and appoints a voting majority of the
Authority's Board. The Housing Authority is presented as a discretely presented component unit,

These three component units are reported in separate columns in the City's government-wide
financial statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from the City. They are presented
as component units because the City appoints the voting majority of the Boards and is financially
accountable for them. Separate financial statements for these component units are not available.

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the activities of the primary government. Govemmental
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported
separalely from business-fype activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for
support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers
or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by
a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, and proprietary funds. Major

individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
c. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue
as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the curmrent financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected
within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when
payment is due.

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and investment income associated with the
current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized
as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable
and available only when cash is received by the City.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources
of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax Fund {SPLOST) is a capital projects fund used
to account for the revenues and expenditures relating to the 2008 1% Special Purpose Local
Option Sales Tax.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Sanitation Fund accounts for the operations of commercial and residential waste removal
within the City. All activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund.

The Morrow Center Fund accounts for the operations of the Morrow Conference Center. All
activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUNMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

e. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation
{Continued)

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

The special revenue funds account for revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditure
for specific purposes.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other
charges between the City's sanitation function and various other functions of the City. Elimination
of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various
functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, ar privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as
program revenues, Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal
operating revenues of the enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services
provided. The City also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to
recover the cost of connecting new customers to the system. Operating expenses for the
enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation
on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

1. Budget requests are completed in April.

2. Proposed budgets are reviewed and prepared by the City Manager for submission to the
Mayor and the City Commission in May.

3. Public hearings on the proposed budget are held in May and June.

4. The budget is legally adopted by the Mayor and City Commission prior to June 30.

5. All budget revisions or changes must be approved as required by Georgia law and
administrative policy. Transfer of budgeted amounts in excess of $5,000 between
departments requires the approval of the City Council. This is consistent with the legal
level of budgetary control as the budget is adopted at the department level. Revisions that
alter the total expenditures of any department or fund must be approved by the City
Council. The City Council made several immaterial supplemental budget appropriations
during the year.

6. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year
for all the governmental funds and the enterprise funds. Budgets for the enterprise funds
are prepared for planning and control purposes only.

7. Budgets for the governmental funds and the enterprise funds are adopted on a basis
consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

8. Revenues and expenditures of the Capital Projects Fund are budgeted on a project basis

E

and are, therefore, excluded from presentation in the financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly liquid investments that are both readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and so near their maturity that they present insignificant risk
of changes in value because of changes in interest rates. Generally, only investments with original
maturities of three months or less meet this definition.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

F. Deposits and Investments

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers all highly liquid investments
(including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash

equivalents.

State statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the U.S. Government and agencies of
corporations of the U.S. Government; obligations of any state; obligations of any political
subdivision of any state; certificates of deposit or time deposits of any national state bank or
savings and loan which have deposits insured by the FDIC or FSLIC; prime bankers’ acceptances;
repurchase agreements; and the Local Government Investment Pool of the State of Georgia
("Georgia Fund 1"). Georgia Fund 1 was created under OCGA 36-83-8 and operates in a manner
consistent with Rule 2a-7 of the Investment Campany Act of 1940 and is considered to be a 2a-7
like pool. The pool is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. The pool's primary
objectives are safety of capital, investment income, liquidity and diversification while maintaining
principal ($1 per share value). Net asset value is calculated weekly to ensure stability. The pool
distributes earnings (net of management fees) on a monthly basis and determines participants’
shares sold and redeemed based on $1 per share. The fair value of the City'’s position in the pool is
the same as the value of pool shares ($1 per share value). The pool is regulated by the Georgia
Office of State Treasurer.

Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term investments are reported at cost, which
approximates fair value. Securities traded on a national or international exchange are valued at the
last reported sales price at current exchange rates. Mortgages are valued on the basis of future
principal and interest payments, and are discounted at prevailing interest rates for similar
instruments.  The fair value of real estate investments is based on independent appraisals.
Investments that do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair values,

G. Inventory and Prepaid Items
Inventory in the proprietary funds is valued at the lower of cost or market. The City accounts for
inventory on the purchase basis. Prepaid items are accounted for using the consumption method.

A prepaid item is recognized when a cash expenditure/expense is made for goods or services that
were purchased for consumption, but not consumed as of June 30.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
H. Short-Term Interfund Receivables/Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods
provided or services rendered. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed
from the government-wide statement of net position. Any residual balances outstanding between
the governmental and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide statement of
net position as “internal balances.” In the major fund balance sheets, these receivables and
payables are classified as “due from other funds” and “due to other funds”,

l. Grants from Other Governments

Federal and state governmental units represent an important source of supplementary funding
used to finance housing, business development employment, construction programs, capital asset
additions and other activities beneficial to the community. This funding, primarily in the form of
grants, is recorded in both governmental and proprietary funds. Grant contributions in the
proprietary funds, which are for the purpose of construction activities, or land easement or capital
asset acquisitions, are recorded as capital contributions within the statement of revenues and
expenses. For all funds, a grant receivable is recorded when the City has a right to receive the
related grant amounts.

J. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-
type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by
the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of
one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assels are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of
donation. In accordance with GASB 34, the City has elected not to include infrastructure acquired
or constructed prior to July 1, 2003,

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend useful lives are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
J. Capital Assets (Continued)

Major outlays for capital assets and major improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction period of capital assets of the business-type
activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. The amount of
interest capitalized is calculated by offsetting interest expense incurred (from the date of borrowing
until the date of completion of the project) with interest earned on investment proceeds over the
same period. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, there was no capitalized interest.

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings, grounds, and improvements 15-40 years
Machinery and equipment 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Infrastructure 16 years
Vehicles 5-10 years
Computer software 5 years
Park facilities and improvements 15 years

K. Long-Term Liabilities

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of
net position. Bond premiums and discounts and deferred charges, are deferred and amortized
over the life of the bonds using the straight line method, which is not materially different than the
effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or
discount.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts,
as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is
reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other
financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received,
are reported as debt service expenditures.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
L. Deferred Cutflows / Inflows of Resources

GASB Statements No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Defarred Inflows
of Resources, and Net Position and No. 65, ltems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities
establish accounting and financial reporting for deferred outflows / inflows of resources and the
concept of net position as the residual of all other elements presented in a statement of net
position.

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outfiows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will
not be recognized as an outflow of resources {(expense { expenditure) until then. The City did not
have any items that qualifed for reporting in this category.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of fund balance that applies to future period(s) and so will not
be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has only one type of
item, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting in
this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is reported only in the governmental
funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from property and
hotel/motel taxes and these amounts are deferred and will be recognized as an inflow of resources
in the period in which the amounts become available.

M. Compensated Absences

City employees accrue vacation in different amounts, according to the number of years of service.
Employees under 10 years of service accrue two weeks of vacation each year. Upon reaching 10
years of service, employees can accrue three weeks per year. These days can be taken either
through time off or by payment upon termination. The third week accrued for employees over 10
years of service can also be paid out as additional compensation while still employed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(CONTINUED)
M. Compensated Absences (Continued)

Employees earn sick leave in proportion to actual hours worked. Sick leave, however, is not paid
upon termination if termination is by manner other than death or retirement. One-half of the excess
accrued hours over 60 days at the end of the year are paid out to employees. All vacation pay is
accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability
for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a
result of employee resignations or retirements.

N. Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve the portion of the applicable appropriation,
is employed as an exiension of formal budgetary integration in the General Fund and Capital
Projects Fund. Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as committed or assigned
fund balances since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.  Unencumbered
appropriations lapse at the end of the year. Encumbrances are re-appropriated in the following
year, except for encumbrances in the Capital Projects Fund which are continuing. Encumbrances
do not represent GAAP expenditures, At June 30, 2014, there were no encumbrances outstanding.

0. Fund Equity

Fund equity at the governmental fund financial reporting level is classified as “fund balance.” Fund
equity for all other reporting is classified as “net position.”

Fund Balance - Generally, fund balance represents the difference between the assets and
liabilities under the current financial resources measurement focus of accounting. In the fund
financial statements, governmental funds report fund balance classifications that comprise a
hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on the
specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent. Fund balances are classified as
follows:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
o. Fund Equity (Continued)

« Nonspendable - Fund balances are reported as nonspendable when amounts cannot be
spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form (i.e., items that are not expected to be
converted to cash) or {b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

s Restricted — Fund balances are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed
on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the City or through external
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.

« Committed — Fund balances are reported as committed when they can be used only for
specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the City Council through
the adoption of a resolution. Only the City Council may modify or rescind the commitment.

e Assigned - Fund balances are reported as assigned when amounts are constrained by
the City’s intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed.
Through resolution, the City Council has authorized the City's Finance Director or the City
Manager to assign fund balances.

s Unassigned ~ Fund balances are reported as unassigned as the residual amount when
the balances do not meet any of the above criterion. The City reports positive unassigned fund
balance only in the General Fund. Negative unassigned fund balances may be reported in all
funds.

Flow Assumptions - When both restricted and unrestricted amounts of fund balance are available
for use for expenditures incurred, it is the City's policy to use restricted amounts first and then
unrestricted amounts as they are needed. For unrestricted amounts of fund balance, it is the City's
policy to use fund balance in the following order: 1) committed, 2) assigned, and 3) unassigned.
The City has not adopted a minimum fund balance policy.

Net Position - Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities in reporting
which utilizes the economic resources measurement focus. Net investment in capital assets,
consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of
any borrowing used (i.e., the amount that the City has spent) for the acquisition, construction or
improvement of those assets. Net position is reported as restricted using the same definition as
used for restricted fund balance as described in the section above. All other net position is
reported as unrestricted.




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

NOTE 2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
P. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the
government-wide statement of net position

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance — total
govemmental funds and nef position — governmental activities as reported in the government-
wide statement of net position. One element of that reconciliation explains that “certain
liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the
funds.” The details of this $3,107,019 difference are as follows:

Capital leases § 1,468,636
Bonds payable 1,350,000
Compensated absences 271,880
Accrued interest 16,503
Net adjustment to reduce fund balance - total governmental funds
to arrive at net position - governmental activities 5 3,107,019
T ————
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2.

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B.

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide
statement of activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances ~ total governmental funds and
changes in net position of governmental aclivilies as reported in the government-wide
statement of activities. One element of that reconciliation explains that “Governmental funds
report capital outiays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those
assels is allocated over their useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.” The details of
this $123,241 difference are as follows:

Capital outlay $ 1,197,382
Depreciation expense {1,321,323)
Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances - totat

governmental funds to arrive at changes in net pasition of
governmental activities $ (123,941)
R

Another element of that reconciliation explains that “The issuance of long-term debt provides
current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-
term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither

transaction, however, has any effect on net position.” The details of this $1,164,465 difference
are as follows:

Principal retirement of long-term debt $ 1,456,661
Proceeds from capital lease (292,196)
Net adjustment to increase nef changes in fund balances - total

governmental funds to arrive at changes in net position of
governmental aclivities $ 1,164,465

35



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide
statement of activities (Continued)

Another element of that reconciliation explains that “Some expenses reporied in the statement
of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported as expenditures in governmental funds.” The details of this $21,145 difference are as

follows:
Change in accrued interest $ 7,948
Change in compensated absences 13,197

Net adjustment to increase nef changes in fund balances - total
governmental funds to arrive at changes in nef position of
governmental activities ) 21,145
]

NOTE 3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
Total deposits and investments as of June 30, 2014, are summarized as follows:

Amounts as presented on the entity-wide Statement of Net Position:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,561,558
Investments 1,348,137
Component Units - cash and cash equivalents 148,859
Total $ 4,058,554

Cash deposited with financial institutions $ 2,710,417
Cash deposited with Georgia Fund 1 1,348,137
Total 3 4,058,554



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Credit risk. State statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the State of Georgia or
other states; obligations issued by the U.S. government; obligations fully insured or guaranteed by
the U.S. government or by a government agency of the United States; obligations of any
corporation of the U.S. government; prime bankers' acceptances; the local government investment
pool established by state law; repurchase agreements; and obligations of other political
subdivisions of the State of Georgia. It is the City's policy to limit its investments to those allowed
and authorized by state law. As of June 30, 2014, the City's investment in Georgia Fund 1 was
rated AAAf by Standard & Poor's.

At June 30, 2014, the City had the following investments:

investment Maturities Fair Value

Georgia Fund 1 62 day weighted average $ 1,348,137

Georgia Fund 1, created by OCGA 36-83-8, is a stable net asset value investment pool which
follows Standard & Poor's criteria for AAAF rated money market funds. However, Georgia Fund 1
operates in a manner consistent with Rule 2a-7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940 and is
considered to be a 2a-7 like pool. The pool is not registered with the SEC as an investment
company. The pool's primary objectives are safety of capital, investment income, liquidity and
diversification while maintaining principal ($1.00 per share value). Net asset value is calculated
weekly to ensure stability.

The pool distributes earnings (net of management fees) on a monthly basis and determines
participants' shares sold and redeemed based on $1.00 per share.

Interest rate risk. The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest
rates.

Custodial credit risk — deposits. Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of
the failure of a depository financial institution, a government will not be able to recover deposits or
will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. As of
June 30, 2014, all of the City's and its discretely presented component units bank balances were
covered by either federal depository insurance or by collateral held by the City's agent in the City's
name.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments. Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the
event of the failure of the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its
investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. State statutes
require all investments (other than federal or state government instruments) to be collateralized by
depository insurance, obligations of the U.S. government, or bonds of public authorities, counties,
or municipalities.

NOTE 4. RECEIVABLES

Receivables as of year-end, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as

follows:
Nonmajor Morrow
General SPLOST Governmental Sanitation Center Total
Receivables:
Taxes $ 188327 § - 8 371,937 $ - 3 - 3 560,264
Accounts 1,288 - 26,441 114,052 13,707 155,488
Due from
other governments 261,888 248,005 - i - 500,893
Gross receivables 451,503 248,005 398,378 114,052 13,707 1,225,645
Less: allowance (10,571) - (105,626) - - (116,197)
Total receivables $ 440,932 $ 248,005 $ 292,752 $ 114,052 $ 13,70_7- $ 1,109,448
p—— TTTT——— e ——— Sm——————— Smmm— ——— 1
Property Taxes

Property taxes were levied on August 16, 2013, (Levy Date) based upon property values assessed
as of January 1. The billings were mailed on October 3, 2013, and payable on or before December
20, 2013, for the fiscal year 2014 tax. Taxes not paid within 30 days of the December 20th due
date are subject to property tax liens on December 21, 2013. Property tax revenues are
recognized when levied to the extent they result in current receivables.

The tax rate levied during fiscal year 2014 for the City's operations was 9.5 mills (mill equals $1 per
thousand dollars of assessed value).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE §.

CAPITAL ASSETS

A. Primary Government

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2014, was as follows:

Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Infrastructure in pracess
Tolal capital assels, not
being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings, grounds, and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Fumiture and fixtures
Infrastructure
Vehicles
Computer software
Park facilities and improvements
Total capital assets,
belng depraciated

Less accumulaled depreciation for.

Buildings, grounds, and improvements

Machinery and equipment

Fumniture and fixtures

Infrastructure

Vehicles

Compuler software

Park facilities and improvements

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assels, being
deprecialed, net

Govemnmental aclivities capital
assets, net

Beglnning Ending
Balance Incroases Decreases Balance

§ 4,773,585 ] 523,688 (284,038) § 5,013,235
171,461 30,192 B 201,653
4,945,046 553,881 (284,039) 5,214,888
4,474,871 179,304 - 4,654,175
874,577 - - 874,577
230,876 . - 230,876
12,671,214 172,043 - 12,843,257
3,088,946 292,154 - 3,381,100
457,287 - {432,907) 24,380
1,061,080 - - 1,051,080
22,848,851 643,501 {432,907) 23,059,445
(2,217,682) (129,481) . (2,347,163)
(543,018) (66,655) - (609.673)
(230,876) . - {230,876)
(3,261,726) {856,217) - {4,117,943)
(2,318,243) {194,688) - {2,512,931)
(439,485) {4.877) 432,807 (11.435)
(411,257) (69,405) - (480,662)
(9,422,267) {1,321,323) 432,907 (10,310,683)
13,426,584 (677.822) - 12,748,762
S§ 18371630 § (123,941) (284,039) § 17,963,650
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE &. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

A. Primary Government (Continued)

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Dacreases Balance
Business-type activities:
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings, grounds, and improvements  § - 4,698,021 8 3 $ - 5 4,998,021
Machinery and equipment 8,752 - “ 8,752
Fumiture and fixtures 27,417 - - 27417
Total capital assets.
being depreciated 5,034,190 - “ 5,034,190
Less accumulated depraciation for:
Buildings, grounds, and improvements (437,328) (124,951) - (582,279}
Machinery and equipment (3,063) {875) “ (3,938)
Furniture and fixtures {19,191) {5.483) » (24,674)
Total accumulated depreciation {459,582) (131,309) - (580,891)
Business-type acllvities capital
assels, net $ 4,574,608 $ (131,309) S - s 4,443,299

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary govemment as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 72,776
Public safety 275,490
Public works 973,057
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 1,321,329

Business-type activities:

Morrow Center $ 131,308
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 131,309
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5.

CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

B. Discretely Presented Component Unit - Downtown
Authority
Beginning
Balance Increases Dacreases

Development

Ending
Balance

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 7,594,671 $ 284,039 S (284,039) § 7,594,671
Total capital assets, not

being depreciated 7,594,671 284,039 (284,039) 7,584,671
Capital assels, being depreciated:
Buildings, grounds, and improvements 11,772,202 592,208 (589,626) 11,774,784
Infrastructure 4,845,232 - - 4,845,232
Fumiture and fixtures 110,998 - - 110,998
Signs 53,131 - 53,131
Total capital assets,

being depreciated 16,781,563 592,208 (589,626) 16,784,145
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Bulldings, grounds, and improvements (2,900.583) (443,466) - (3,344,049)
Infrastructure {709.958) {152,785) . (862,743)
Fumiture and fixtures {92,239) (18,759) - (110,998)
Signs {23,594) (3,542) - (27,136)
Total accumutated depreciation (3,726,374) (618,552) - (4,344,926)
Tolal capital assets, being

deprecialed, net 13,055,189 (26,344) (589,626} 12,439,219
Total capital assets, net $ 20,649,860 $ 257 695 S (873665 § 20,033,890

Included in the above amount is a development known as *Old Towne Morrow”, whose assets had
a net book value of approximately $8.4 million as of June 30, 2014. Due to the continued downturn

in the economy, the development has been temporarily closed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6.

LONG-TERM DEBT
A. Primary Government

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2014, was as follows:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental activities:
Capital leases $ 1328101 $ 292196 $ (151661) $ 1468636 §$ 191,948
Bonds payable 2,655,000 - (1,305,000) 1,350,000 1,350,000
Compensated absences 285,077 240,022 (253,219) 271,880 244,700

Governmental activities
Long-term liabilities $ 4268178 $ 532218 $ (1,709,880) $ 3090516 § 1,786,648

Compensated absences are substantially liquidated by the General Fund.

Capital leases. At June 30, 2003, the City was obligated under a capital lease with the Clayton
County Tourism Authority (the County), covering the Morrow Welcome Center building (the
building). In August 2003, the lease was terminated in conjunction with a bond issue described in
the following paragraph.

During August 2003, the Downtown Development Authority of the City of Morrow, a component unit
of the City, issued bonds in the amount of $1,500,000. The proceeds of these bonds were used to
purchase the building from the County. Additionally, the Authority and the City executed a new
capital lease agreement covering the building. The gross amount of the building recorded on the
City's books as a capital asset under this capital lease was $1 ,500,000.

In May 2013, the City entered into a lease agreement for a new fire truck. The lease agreement
qualifies as a capital lease for accounting purposes {title transfers at the end of the lease term).
This lease has an annual interest rate of 2.45% and the gross amount of the fire truck under this
capital lease is $461,794.

In April 2014, the City entered into a lease agreement for nine police vehicles. The lease
agreement qualifies as a capital lease for accounting purposes (title transfers at the end of the
lease term). This lease has an annual interest rate of 2,08% and the gross amount of the police
vehicles under this capital lease is $292,196.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under the capital leases, and the
present value of the net minimum lease payments at June 30, 2014:

Fiscal year ending June 30,

2015 $ 236,510
2016 236,510
2017 236,510
2018 198,350
2019 160,190
2020-2024 608,446
Total minimum lease payments 1,676,516
Less amount representing interest (207,880)
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 1,468,636

The City's capital leases had a total purchase price of $2,528,802, current year depreciation
expense of $119,776, accumulated depreciation of $687,756 and net book value of $1,841,146 as
of June 30, 2014.

Revenue Bonds. In June 2009, the City issued revenue bonds where the Cily pledged income
derived from a 1% special purpose local option sales tax levied by Clayton Counly to pay debt
service. The City’s SPLOST revenue bonds outstanding at June 30, 2014, are as follows:

Interest Due QOriginal Outstanding
Purpose Rate Term Date Amount Amount

Various SPLOST Projects 3.44% & years 2015 $ 5,135,000 $ 1,350,000

Revenue bond debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Principal Interest Total
Fiscal year ending June 30,
2015 $ 1,350,000 $ 46,440 $ 1,396,440
Total $ 1,350,000 § 46440 $ 1,396.440
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6.

LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

B. Discretely Presented Component Unit — Downtown Development Authority

The following is a summary of long-term debt activity for the Downtown Development Authority for

the year ended June 30, 2014:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Development Authority
Bonds payable $ 8731315 $ - § (494415) $ 8236900 § 517,345
Note payable 1,079,301 - (79,164) 1,000,137 82,527
Development Authority

Long-term liabilites $ 9810616 $ $ (573,579)

'$ 9,237,037 §$ 599,872
E—

Bonds Payable. The Downtown Development Authority of the City of Morrow, issued bonds in the
amount of $1,500,000 in August 2003. The proceeds of these bonds were used to purchase the
Morrow Welcome Center building from the County. In June 2007, the Authority issued bonds
(Series 2007) in the amount of $10,000,000. The proceeds of these bonds were used to purchase
the Macy's Building from the City. In May 2008, the Authority issued new bonds (Series 2008) to
refinance the Series 2007 bonds at a lower interest rate. Bonds payable at June 30, 2013, are as

follows:
Interest Due Original Qutstanding
Purpose Rate Term Date Amount Amount
Welcome Center Building 3.86%  20years 2024 $ 1,500,000 $ 822,900
Macy's Building 3.39%  10years 2017 10,000,000 7,414,000

T 82%50

Bonds Payable. Debt service requirements to maturity on the revenue bonds are as follows:

Principal Interest Total
Fiscal year ending June 30,

2015 $ 517,35 $ 281972 $§ 799,317
2016 534,374 264,027 798,401
2017 6,603,521 245,489 6,849,010
2018 86,792 21,190 107,982
2019 90,191 17,791 107,982
2020 - 2024 404,677 34,500 439,177

Total $ 8236900 $ 864968 $ 9,101,869
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6.

NOTE 7.

LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

B. Discretely Presented Component Unit — Downtown Development Authority
{Continued)

Notes payable. During September 2009, the Downtown Development Authority incurred debt in
the amount of $1,300,000 to finance the purchase of an office building complex. The terms of the
note are as follows:

Interest Due Original
Purpose Rate Term Date Amount Amount

Office complex purchase 5.91% 3 years 2016 $ 1,300,000 $ 1,000,137

Debt service requirements to maturity on the notes payable are as follows:

Principal Interest Total
Fiscal year ending June 30,
2015 $ 82,527 33,556 $ 116,083
2016 917,610 5,311 022 921
Total $ 1,000,137 $ 38,867 $ 1,039,004

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN
A. Plan Description

The City of Morrow Retirement Plan is a defined benefit plan that provides retirement and disability
penefits and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The City's Plan is a part of the
Georgia Municipal Emplayees Benefit System (the "System”), an agent multiple-employer public
employee retirement system administered by the Georgia Municipal Association. The Public
Retirement Systems Standard Law (Georgia Code Section 47-20-10) assigns the City to establish
and amend the plan to the City of Morrow. The Georgia Municipal Employees Benefit System
issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the System. The report may be obtained by writing to the Georgia
Municipal Employees Benefit System, 201 Pryor Street, S.W., Atlanta, Georgia 30303.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
A. Plan Description (Continued)
The City's employee participation is noncontributory. The City is required to contribute at an
actuarially determined rate; the current rate is 11.86% of annual covered payroll. The contribution
requirements of plan members and the City are established and may be amended by the System's
Board of Trustees.
At January 1, 2014, the date of the most recent actuarial valuation, there were 188 participants
consisting of the following:
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 37
Vesled terminated employees not yet receiving benefits 46
Active employees 105
Total 188
p—
As of the most recent valuation date, January 1, 2014, the funded status of the Plan was as follows:
Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets (AAL) {UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date {a) {b) {b-a) (a/b) (c) {(b-a)ic)
010114  $ 11228659 § 12041691 §$ 813,032 932% § 4915662 165 %

The required schedule of funding progress immediately following the notes to the financial
statements presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan net
position is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial liability. Actuarial valuations
involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events
far into the future, and actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as results
are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Actuarial
calculations reflect long-term perspective. Calculations are based on the substantive plan in effect
as of January 1, 2014.

B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Accounting. The financial statements of the Plan are prepared using the accrual basis of

accounting. The City’s contributions are recognized as revenue in the period in which the
contributions are due. Investment income is recognized by the Plan when earned.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Method Used to Value Investments. Plan invesiments are reported at fair value. Short-term
investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. Securities traded on a national
exchange are valued at the last reported sales price. Mortgages are valued on the basis of future
principal and interest payments and are discounted at prevailing interest rates for similar
instruments. Investments that do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair
value. The method for determining the actuarial value of assets is part of the GMEBS actuarial
funding policy. This method produces an adjusted actuarial value of assets.

C. Funding Policy

The City is required to contribute all amounts necessary to fund the plan, using the actuarial basis
specified by the pension board. The funding policy for the Plan is to contribute an amount equal to
or greater than the recommended contribution described below. Administrative costs of the Plan
are financed through investment income,

The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as pan of the January 1,
2013, actuarial valuation using the project unit credit actuarial cost method. The actuarial
assumptions included (a) a rate of return on the investment of present and future assets of 7.75%
per year, compounded annually and net of investment expenses and (b) projected salary increases
of 3.5% for inflation. The amortization method is closed level dollar for the remaining unfunded
liability. The remaining amortization period varies for the bases, with a net effective amortization
period of 10 years. These amortization periods are closed for this plan year.

D. Annual Pension Cost

Net

Fiscal Annual Percentage Pension
Year Pension of APC Obligation

Beginning Cost (APC) Contributed {Asset)
01/01/06 $ 255,766 100 % $ -
01/01/07 299,462 100 -
01/01/08 303,558 100 -
01/01/09 522,256 100 -
Q7/01/1Q 411,635 100 -
07/01/11 483,130 100 -
07/01/12 533,119 100 -
07/01/13 576,880 100 -
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NOTE 8.

NOTE 9.

NOTE 10.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLAN

The City participates in the Georgia Municipal Association 401(a) Defined Contribution Plan {the
Plan) which is administered by the Georgia Municipal Association through their service manager,
CitiStreet. The Plan provides retirement benefits to plan participants and beneficiaries. Plan
provisions and contribution requirements are established and may be amended by the City.
Employees are not required to contribute to the Plan. The City contributes an amount equal to 50%
of the amount contributed by participants to the City's plan, except that the City shall not match in
excess of 4% of the participant’s annual compensation. The City's contribution for each employee
is 100% vested afier five (5) years of continuous service. For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014,
the City contributed $44,395 to the Plan.

Pursuant to the Statement Number 32 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
"Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred
Compensation Plans’, the City does not have a fiduciary relationship with the 457 plan,
Accordingly, the balances and transactions of the City's 457 plan are not reported in the City's
financial statements.

BUDGET COMPLIANCE
Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations

For the year ended June 30, 2014, expenditures exceeded budget appropriations, as follows:;

Fund Excess
General Fund
General government - economic development $ 10,737

These over expenditures were funded by available fund balance and larger than anticipated
revenues,

HOTEL/MOTEL LODGING TAX
The City has levied an 8% lodging tax. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, $643,416 of

hotel/motel tax was collected. Of the total collected, over 50% was used for the promotion of
tourism within the City.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 11.

NOTE 12.

INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

Interfund receivable and payable balances as of June 30, 2014, are as follows:

Due From
General Nonmajor
Fund Governmental Total

Due To
Nonmajor Governmental $ 32,391 § - 8 32,39
Morrow Center 22,043 - 22,043
Sanitation Fund - 37,447 37,447

Total $ 54434 § 37,447 § 91,881

These balances resulted from the time lag between the dates of (1) collection of various taxes in
Special Revenue Funds, (2) interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable
expenditures occur, (3) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (4) payments
between funds are made.

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2014, consisted of the following:

Transfer to
Nonmajor Morrow
General Governmental Center Total

Transfer from
General Fund $ - $ 139912 § 94626 § 234,538
Nonmajor Governmental 354,923 - - 354,923
Sanitation Fund 137,870 - « 137,870

Total § 492,793 $ 139912 § 94626 § 727,331

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires collecting
them to the fund that the statute or budget requires to expend them and (2) use unrestricted
revenues collected in the General Fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in
accordance with budgetary authorizations.

JOINT VENTURES

Under Georgia law, the City, in conjunction with other cities and counties in the Metro Atlanta area,
is a member of the Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC). During its year ended June 30, 2014, the
City's membership dues were paid by Clayton County, Georgia on the City's behalf. Membership in
a regional commission (RC) is required by the Official Code of Georgia Annotated (OCGA), Section
50-8-34, which provides for the organizational structure of the ARC in Georgia. The RC Board
membership includes the chief elected official of each county and municipality of the area. OCGA
50-8-39.1 provides that the member governments are liable for any debts or obligations of an RC.
Separate financial statements may be obtained from: Atlanta Regional Commission, 3715
Northside Parkway, 200 North Creek Suite 300, Atlanta, Georgia 30327.
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NOTE 13.

NOTE 14.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The City is involved in various claims and matters of litigation resulting from normal operations.
Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, in the opinion of the City
attorney, the resolution of these matters will not have a materially adverse effect on the financial
condition of the City.

Amounts received or recelvable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by
grantor agencies, principally the Federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts
already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of
expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although
the government expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees and natural disasters. The City has joined
together with other municipalities in the state as part of the Georgia Interlocal Risk Management
Agency Property and Liability Insurance Fund and the Georgia Municipal Association Group Self-
Insurance Workers' Compensation Fund, public entity risk pools currently operating as common
risk management and insurance programs for member local governments.

As part of these risk pools, the City is obligated to pay all contributions and assessments as
prescribed by the pools, to cooperate with the pools’ agents and attorneys, to follow loss reduction
procedures established by the funds and to report as promptly as possible and in accordance with
any coverage descriptions issued, all incidents which could result in the funds being required to pay
any claim of loss. The City is also to allow the pools’ agents and attorneys to represent the City in
investigation, settlement discussions and all levels of litigation arising out of any claim made
against the City within the scope of loss protection furnished by the funds.

The funds are to defend and protect the members of the funds against liability or loss as prescribed
in the member government contract and in accordance with the workers' compensation law of
Georgia. The funds are to pay all cost taxed against members in any legal proceeding defended by
the members, all interest accruing after entry of judgment and all expenses incurred for
investigation, negotiation or defense.

Settled claims in the past three years have not exceeded the coverages.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Actuarial UAAL as a

Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage

Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroli
Date {a) {b) (b-a) {a/b) {c} {{b-a)ic)

171/2006 § 6,986,941 6,534,385 $  (452,556) 1069% $ 3,511,297 (12.9) %

1/1/2007 7,518,302 7,110,947 (407,355)  105.7 3,888,441 (10.5)
1/1/2008 8,166,199 7,890,874 (275,325) 1035 4,112,214 6.7)
1/112009 6,956,352 8,534,903 1,578,551 81.5 4,526,803 349
1/1/2010 8,858,997 9,099,687 240,690 974 4,400,873 55
1/1/2011 9,343,935 8,798,736 454,801 95.4 4,769,013 9.5
1/1/2012 9,825,050 10,573,887 748,837 92.9 4,804,485 15.6
1172013 10,431,699 11,308,182 876,483 92.2 4,779,943 18.3
17112014 11,228,659 12,041,691 813,032 93.2 4,915,662 16.5

The assumptions used in the preparation of the above schedule are disclosed in Note 7 in the Notes to the
Financial Statements.
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted to
expenditures for specified purposes.

The Emergency Communications Fund accounts for the fee collection and operations of the Emergency 911
system within the City.

The Hotel/Motel Tax Fund accounts for the Hotel/Motel tax receipts and distributions of funds used to promote
tourism within the City.

The Confiscated Assets Fund accounts for the collection and use of funds confiscated from convicted offenders.

The Excise Tax Fund accounts for the collection of rental car fees that are required to be remitted to the Economic
Development Department.



CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2014
Emargency Hotelf Confiscated Excise
Communications Maotel Tax Assats Tax
ASSETS Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals
Cash and cash equivalents S - 8 - 8§ 1058642 S - 8 105,642
Taxes receivable - 262,910 - 3,401 268,311
Accounts receivable 26,441 . - - 26,441
Due from other funds - - 32.391 - 32,391
Total assets S 26441 S 262910 S 138,033 § 3401 § 430,785
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 947 8 - 8 39,969 S - 8 40,916
Accrued liabilities 8,206 - - - 8,206
Due to olher funds 17,288 8,848 7,909 3,401 37,447
Totatl liabilities 26,441 8,849 47,878 3,401 86,569
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - hotel molel taxes - 254,061 - - 254,061
Tota!l deferred inflows of resources - 254,061 - - 254,061
FUND BALANCES
Restricted for:
Law enforcement - - 90,155 - 80,155
Total fund balances - 90,155 - 80,155
Tota! liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources and fund balances $ 26441 S 262910 S 138,033 S 3401 § 430,785
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Emergency Hotel/ Confiscated Excise
Communications Motel Tax Assels Tax
Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals
Revenues
Other taxes $ - § 643416 § - 33,215 § 676,631
Charges for services 139,912 - “ « 139,912
Fines and forfeitures - - 83,552 “ 83,562
Interest revenue . - 35 - 35
Total revenues 139,912 643,416 83,587 33,215 900,130
Expenditures
Public safety 279,824 . 36,633 - 316,457
Economic development - 321,708 “ - 321,708
Tolal expendilures 279,824 321,708 36,633 “ 638,165
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expendilures {139,912) 321,708 46,954 33.215 261,965
Other financing sources {uses)
Transfers in 139,912 - - - 139,912
Transfers out - (321,708) - (33.215), (354,923)
Total other financing sources (uses) 139,912 (321,708) - (33.215) (215,011)
Net change in fund balances - - 46,854 - 46,954
Fund balances, beginning of year - - 43.201 - 43,201
Fund balances, end of year S - 8 -3 90,155 § 90.155
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA
EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Original Budget _ Final Budget Actual Variance
Revenues
Charges for services $ 131000 8§ 142,500 S 138,812 § (2.588)
Total revenues 131,000 142,500 139,912 (2,588)
Expenditures
Public safety 262,000 285,000 279,824 5,176
Total expenditures 262,000 285,000 270,824 5,176
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures (131,000) (142,500) (138,912) 2.588
Othar financing sources
Transfers in 131,000 142,500 138,912 2,588
Tolal other financing sources 131,000 142,500 138.912 (2,588)
Net change in fund balance - - - "
Fund balances, beginning of year - - - -
Fund balances, end of year $ - § - 8§ - & -




CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA
HOTEUMOTEL TAX FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Revenues
Other taxes

Expenditures
Economic development
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over expenditures
Other financing uses
Transfers out
Total other financing uses
Net change in fund balance
Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

Original Budget __ Final Budget Actual Variance

$ 570,000 § 706,000 643416 S (62,584)
285,000 353,000 321,708 31,292
285,000 353,000 321,708 31,292
285,000 353,000 321,708 (31,292)
285,000/ (353,000) (321,708} 31,202
{285,000) (353,000 (321,708) 31,292

$ - 9 $ =
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA
CONFISCATED ASSETS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Revenues
Fines and forfaitures

Interest
Total revenues

Expenditures
Public safety
Total expenditures
Net change in fund balance
Fund balances, baginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance
$ 50000 § 50,000 § 83552 § 33,552
- - 35 35
50,000 50,000 83,587 33,587
50,000 50,000 36,833 13,367
50,000 50,000 36,633 13,367
- - 46,954 46,954
- 43,201 43,201
$ - 0§ - 90,155 § 90,155




CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

EXCISE TAX FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Revenues
Other taxes

Other financing uses
Transfers out

Net change in fund balance
Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance

$ 15,714 S 33714 § 33215 $ {499)
(15,714) {33.714) (33,215) 499

$ - 8 $ - 8
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF SPECIAL PURPOSE
LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX - 2008 ISSUE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

Projec
Pedestrian Path System Phase |
Pedestrian Path System Phase 1)
Pedestrian Path System Phase (il
Barton Park Phase IV
Morrow Conference Center
Olde Morrow Creek Carridor
Pedestrian Path System Phase V
Pedesirian Path System Phase VI
Lee Street Pedestrian Facility

Totals

Original Current
Estimated Estimated Prior Current
Cost Cost Years Year Total
S 139448 § 139448 § 138950 § = 8 139,950
680,000 690,000 302,672 « 302,672
861,025 861,025 489,842 30,192 520,034
377,901 377,801 “ . -
4,051,626 4,051,626 5,095,143 » 5,005,143
2,160,000 2,160,000 1,826,781 1,826,781
290,000 290,000 . - -
290,000 290,000
1.000.000 1,000,000 - -
$ 9860000 § 9860000 $ 7.854388 § 30,192 § 7,884,580
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA
COMPONENT UNITS

The Downtown Development Authority is the City's redevelopment tool for commercial revitalization. The
Downtown Development Authority was created for property acquisition, renovation, and demalition.

The Morrow Business and Tourism Association is a vital economic partner of the City of Morrow. The Tourism
Association exists to provide special events to the community and promote tourism within the City. Contracts
between the Tourism Association and the City also provide economies of scale, resource efficiencies, and
employee benefit packages that neither party would be able to achieve on their own.

The City of Morrow Housing Authority was formed during the year ended June 30, 2009, to provide affordable
housing to the citizens of Morrow.



CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

COMPONENT UNITS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activilies

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Contributions from primary government
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases and consiruction of properly and equipment
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets
Principal paid on bonds
Principal paid on notes payable and capital leases
tnterest pald
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and dividends received
Net cash provided by Investing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash aguivalents:
Beginning of year

End of year

Reconclifation of operating loss to nat cash provided by
{used In) operating activitias:
Nel operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operaling income ((oss) to net cash
provided by {used in) operaling activities:
Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabllities:
{Increase) decrease In accounts receivable
Increase in prepaid expenses
Decrease in due to primary govemment
Increase {decrease) in accounts payable
Increase in accrued liabllities
Naet cash provided by (used In} operaling activities

Schedule of non-cash capital and related financing activities:

Contributions of capital assets

Morrow
Downtown Business Morrow
Development  and Tourism Housing Totals
Authority Association Authorlty

$ 326586 $ 290,839 sng 626,435
(330,460) {132,309) (334) (463,103)
- (170.285) - (170.285)
{3,864) (2,755) (334) (6,953)
- 1,000 1.000
- - 1,000 1,000
(2,582) - - {2.582)
1,000,000 1,000,000
{79,164) “ - {79,164)
(494,415) - - {494,415)
{335,943) - - {335,943)
87,896 - - 87,896
33,763 9 - 33,772
33,763 9 - 33,772
117,795 (2,746) 666 115,718
11,134 21,905 105 33,144
3 1289289 § 19,159 721 .8 148,859
§ (705184) S {5,640) {5 & (710,829
618,552 - - 618,552
69,008 {15,024) - 54,074
- 3,634 - 3,634
- (19,205) - (19,205)
7,807 12,364 (329) 19,842
5,863 21,116 - 26,979
S (3864) S (2.755) {334) S (6,953)
$ 873665 S - - 8 -
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Morrow's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context
for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, required supplementary
information, and supplementary information says about the City's overall financial health.

Contents Page

FINANCIAI TTEMAS 1evuveverraeressrsensrorsnsnssssunsrarsussaranassissaiassensossstosssrossassntsrassasissssosses ...60 - 65
These schedules contain trend :nfonnatton fo help the reader understand how the City's fi nanc:al

performance and well-being have changed over time.

ReVENUE CAPACILY ..ocviiinisisssisissiasinis s sssssssissmssssisssssssssisssisasssnsnssasarsssvassss 66 - 70
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's most significant local
revenue Sources.

Debt Capacity ...ceaeiianona 71-73

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City's current
levels of outstanding debt and the City's abilily to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information ........ 74 and 75
These schedules offer demographic and economic zndlcators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the City's financial activities take place.

Operating Information 76-79
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data o help the reader understand how the
information in the City’s financial report relates to the services the Cily provides and the activities it
performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the City's financial reports for
the relevant year. The City implemented GASB 34 in 2004; schedules presenting government-wide information
{unless otherwise indicated) include information beginning in that year.



v06'289'ZZ S 1€6'9.6'22 S 2EQ09SIZT S £9V'B0L'SZ S €BEEIS'CT 896°LOL'EE S 1Z9'GVEIE S 02221192 g0L'261'9l $ 68L'6ELEL $ :oa_uaﬁfﬁpﬂu\aa
Arewyd E10],
Rn“ovw“m wmm..:m.u 859'/16'8 925°190'2 S09'66€'9 GEE'VEZ 6 16L°ZEL'ZL 601 P0Z'9L 182'960'6 avL'pes's pejpulsan
vmw.mmv._. 9e8'10€Y 152710 212159 = = # % =~ y papnsay
CIE'98G'6L S LEM'E9B'8E $ ZIZ'OT9UL § 0TL068'ZL § 9L2'€TylL £86'998'cZ $ O£9'clg6L § 1199066 296602 S 6¥O'SOZ'S  §  SI9sSE [epded ul uswisaaul 1IN
juswwaach Aewy
960205 S SOV'EEIr S VILVOLY § $20'968P § LBGGE6 Y - s - $ - = $ {u8'9) s uoyisod jau sapiARe
; adA)-ssauisng |eloL
16185 164'85 L6L'8S 86485 290°2L g s = 3 (£28°5) pspuisaun
66ZCPY'y $ B09'VIS'Y § LI6'S0L'y § 922'iE8'P § GEG'R9S P - s - g2 * g - §  siasse [Eided Ui JUAISIAUL 1SN
safoe adAp-ssauisng
* Y g g R — g 0y n 0 s T, . < " v, s 0 S~ e P S
908GBL'ET § OCSEY6'TZ S QLE'GELZZ § BEP'EIZOZ S 98.°2€5°81 g96'LOL'EE $ L28'SPEIE S 022721192 01L°Z6L'9L § 990'spL’el S uopsod jau sapanoe
{euaunsack jejo)
0v5 185’9 191°852°L 198’8588 8227200°2 £¥528E9 G86'VET'6 161°ZEL'ZL 601 'v0Z 91 182°960'6 Loovs'e papuisaun
¥SZ'6S¥') 9e8'L0g'L 152710 232259 - - = 2 = 5 papulsay
pLOGPL'GL § B2G'9BE'YY § 00ETZ6'ZTL $ YEP'ESSZL §  EPT'SSLTE £86'098'CC $ 0£9'tI86L § 1198066 I29°S60°L S 6Y0SOZ'S S S19sse [Ended Ul JUSWisaaul 13N
SIHPANIE |EJUSILBACS)
¥102 €102 2102 L1102 0102 6002 8002 4002 9002 $00Z
SHVIA TVISId NIL LSV
ALIALLOY A8 NOILISOd 13N

ViSH039 ‘MOMMON 40 ALID



9

(panupuog)
prE'Ees’'s 280'286'8 812’2428 $90'012°0L 228'25¢'8 292’68y’ L Z0V'€50° 0L BLO'I6EQ £16'660°S 6GTIEE Y sanuaaas wesbasd
JustiusanoB Lewwd jejo]
29Z'v6L'L vZULLLL 9SS'ELL'Y 809'241°) 98E'ITLL y6g'29L't 0sL'ovZ’L 6TTUEL 9e'8Lt’l 86E'9ET'L sanuaaas wesbosd
sanagor adA)-ssauisng jejog
Lo pol 984091 298°€52 12V'60C Pre6S = = = = - 13U MOLIOW
128'620'L 9EE'9S6 681'0Z6 1EY'896 Lra'es0't $BG' 291" osL'opT'L zez'eie't 29e'8LL'L 96€'962°1 uopenues
saases Jof sableyn
safapoe adA-ssauisng
90’690’ £96'6/8°G £99865'8 9SY'ZE0°6 98Y'LET'L 899°21E9 52'¢18's 9ZE6L0'S 055°226¢€ £38Y69T sanuaas weaboxd
sanide [eluauiuaaat 210y
969Gy 266'519'1 609°€8S'L $16°20G°t 686895} 881'9.8 ZELEPLE z - - suonnquiuca pue spesd jepden
009°462 p0'SZ 916'vag 6891241 JAF A o . LYoz €0v'se oze'est SUCTNGUILCS pue
) stuesb Bunesadg
066449 G42'066'C 256'5¥0'S 99EvES'Y SE6TEY Y 6LZ'S0L'Y £95'28E'Y 9Z6'1ES'E 868'009'2 vZr'ees’t fizjes aqnd
0£8'280'tL Z52'850'L 981'p8O"L 068'804°L $82'180°1 192'9£0'4 Z95°TIE'L vZ6's8't 6vZ'15e"t 6L9'21G UBWLIBA06 [e13Ua9)
1o SOOWIBS 30} safirey)
(SSNWIIE [EJUBWILIBAOS
JuswuisnoB Asewlig
sanuaaal weuboiyg
Ip6'ri9'CE LYE'SEV'TL 9zZ¥'2e8'zt 9ZL'BYZ'EL 18V'Z00'EZ LEL'P2'LL 08r'ziotl _S6E0¥00L 212'9y9'8 BB6Z'018'2 $ISUINXS JUBWWBA0E
Arewud e10)
£EE'282'Y 8OL'6VZ L 928252t 666 2v2'L £82°Z80'L 1821001 2/8°180°L ZEQGLL'L §G2'G16 1y5'v98 $35UIdX3 SanARE
adApssauisng jejo]
9L£'06¢ 96y'LLY 10961y ¥56'11Y SpE'EgL » = - - - JRjUaD MOLIOYY
156'168 019268 sze'ees S00'9e8 9£6°E26 182°100'L T16'480°t 2E9'GLLL SS2'616 1v5'vo5 uonejueg
‘sanRoe adAl-ssausng
809'26€ 1L 8E2°981 1Y 009'680p'L1 191'000'2¢ $0Z'016°12 yy6'229'0 _805'0E6'6 £92'y98'8 29¢'029'L 251'6v8'9 $asuadxs saande
jeluawanot jejo)
£20'0EL SE8'LLL BLL'EVT 6£9'052 116'082 Loz'eL 28y'8y 682'0S 92L'28 2i8'%s sabueyo jeosy pue Jsassu|
82Z'61¢ §26'562 86£'20¢ 82€'522 aGL191 £18'E9L £01°281 ¥58'LPT 210°¢8L 190198 JuawdojeAsp JUIOUCOF
6512102 88€°052'Z 0E9'¥60°Z 899'624'L €28°62L'1 LE6'9VSE'L 829'982°1 €820LS £89'p20'L 8v9's08 Syom aand
868'€90'9 vE6'268'C £EP'6ZL'e 019'1pL's 15209v'9 060'652'9 9vs'6LL'9 698LLL'S 199'0L5"y L08'v0G'Y Kj3ges ayang
19e'202 £692'662 5Z8'rLy £20'v8E 212'e5€ 812'88¢C 195'Z1€ 981°061 S9L'viL 2€0°291 {epnp
688'659'C ¢ VBEOLE'T § 66G'6ICT S 66876 S O0E2'806'ZL  $ I6L'Z69t 0§ ZEL'OLETL  § Z8Y'eES’T $ 6pi'SES't  § 9vEzsit ¢ wawusanob essuag
AP [BJUIWIBACD
juawusaaol Lewiug
vz €102 z10Z 1102 0102 6002 800Z 2802 8002 5002 sasuadx3

SUVIA TVISId N3L LSV
NOILISOd L3N NI S3ONVHO

VIOHO03D ‘MOYYONW 40 ALID



29

“seak aiy) Buunp ss1uac Buiddoys petas s Aoe sy Jo S(esai pue aseyasnd syl o) anp 2007 w web abie
A0 BU) vigim MoIS [esauaB pue sabieyd YIS0 PUB SIUY PASBaNE O} INp PIseasdu Aenpeib saey S3oiRs Jo) sefiyD

VIDHO3IO ‘MOYYON 40 ALID

£46'0LL $ SLLLg $ B9LISK'Z § 08098S) S {SG'8ISE) $ b9t S 10L'EE8S $§ ZIS0ZB6 0§ 6L8TSPZ  §  LE6SELY uoipsod jau u
abueys wawwsacb Aewud €10)
aon”—n: {60c1ct) [GIEEY] (€£25's8) £65'586'Y - - - 18's (2286) safoe adhl-ssauisng
82T 24131 640285 £69'629'} (zat'veg'vl) pLgst't LOL'EER'S ZL9'026'6 rO'LYY'e 808’1641 SIPAIL [BJUIWIIA0T
uogysod Jau uj abueyn
CL60LL G12'19 691°15¢'2 080'985'L (585'8/5'6) ipi'sst’L 10L'EE8's 2190266 61625V'2 1£6's8L') uogsad jau uj sabueyd
130 pue sanuaaal jesaual
waurusa0b Aewud jejo)
{pp'cy) 5.9 {ovo'zs) {zzz'st) v6b'a56'Y {£00'591) {821°85L) {099'961) (GeL'oeL} 924°242) uomsod 19u u sabueyd
18410 pue sanuaaa jeiaual
i saianoe sdA) ssauisng feloL
[CZATG] Gi9 {op0'es) (zzz'st) v6r'95E6 ' {208'691) (g1'86L) (099981} (geL'agl) QzL'222) SuBjSURLY
‘sappe adAp-ssauisng
pi86aL'g 00E'869'S LY'EEE S YOEEVIY 985'vLL £2y19V S 2SE0S6' 6v099L°CL PSE'6EL'S 169256’y uogisod 1au us sabueyd
JAYlo pue sanuaAsl jIaual
sagIpPE [RjuawLRA0b 0|
Ty (549} ova'zs ZeC 6t {pBY'956'p) 208'S91 8LL°8SE 099961 GEL'GEL QzLlie sigjsuesy
b * = {oiz'eve) = - - - - - usali [eRds
e L2’ 21261 862 1881 S v5Y 206 015128 £56'VC = 1 S1955€ JO 3fes Lo UED
2562 88SE 980'C 0E8'} 855'E} 9Z4'9L 2Ly 185'P5T L6682t 286'v5T sBuuses Juawisanuy
8£8'9e9 £15'659 £26'G32 215069 86¢'¢99 vOL'TIL £v9'989 8LE'028 255'285 268128 S99 syouely
18642 ang'ovi eL'eL 118'2e 18902 vSz'Z2T £82'ay¢ 10919t ozz'oct zL8'enL SnoaAUBYEISIA
269066 86€'629 §61°185 206°516 £25°26¥ L1G'ELS Zri008 125°108 PpL'26s LIS'S saxe} IBYI0
v68°66 208'v6 2e5'p2L $95°52L 6L2'S2L 109'2¢1L pOV'6EL ¥i9'2pl 667881 z6L'9LL saxe} abesanaq UOYOAY
BSY'ZEE 160°'tZE 862208 108'282 £€29'0L2 LETEeLT S¥8'092 6€8'552 80§'vT §9z'Lee XE} Wil aouensuy
1¥2'609' ze5'204") 200'%59'L 258'e09't 12L'259'1 0LL°L89's 996'228'L obL'szg't £62'6v8°L pOS'LYS'L saxe) sajeg
166°1E'2 680'926'L $88'968'L LIS'PESL 8vL69L°L £10'819't $99'266'L £€20'105't vSSIEL'L £80'580'L saxey Apadoig
Juawnuaach Aty
uogsod jau uj sabueys
Jayio pue anuaAal jelauag
(/85'110°9) (09z'gev's) {202°'068°2) (290'8€0°€) (619'6v9'pt) (89y'BEL V) (£20'656) {222°8v9'8) (00E"055'€) {0v0'6/8'2) asuadxa you
: wawuaach Lewud 0]
ﬁwo.ma . (vg6'LeL) (oz'62) {isc'0) £01'62 208'594 941°951 099'961 [43: 4 4% 6v8'LL2 sannoe adA-ssausng
(2es'cee’s) 8 {ozz'ooe’s) § Les'org'z) s (11229620 § (B12'9:9'%1) § (9u2'0e'w) § (1szais't) § (evewes) s (216269'€) S (689°051'E) S3RARDE [EJSILIAA0Y
anuasay(asuadxa) JoN
vi0z €102 ZL0Z 1102 0L0Z 600Z 8002 1002 9002 §002
SHVY3A TVISId NIL LSV
NOLLISOd 13N Ni S3ONVHO



8S0°696'2L

$ OL09Er'3 § VZYOPEEL § ZOLESEZL § 0S0Z6v'9t

"110Z Je9f feosy Buunp paluswajdus Sem vS SV (310N

SPOLLES

$ 868888 ¢ Spunj [BUaWUBA0G jje [eia ]

TvozesyL S

660'69¢"L
§61'06

$ 6¥6'996} S ¥02°080% $ 20L°L4 $ _800v2s

601°€61

S _286%S1 3 spury |ejuawuiaact Jayio jje fejo)

{ors's9) (ogc'ge} - -
{cov' 268} ¥90'630'y = -

= 8 = S ToL'ML $ 900'¢2S

¥08'605'

18L°806°C

£29°100%

60L'c6t

spun; spoafaid Eude)
- Spuny anusadl [erosds
‘u) papodas 'papuIsay
- Spuny anuAAI [B199dS
2 spury spaaloud jeyded
‘ul papodal panissalun
S Zg6'vSi S SPUN) 3NUIASY erasds
Ut pa}I0d3) ‘PIAIRSIY
Spuny [EUBLILIBACY JBYIO IV

L6 24116

$ _916€958 S puny [2J8USG (€101

$ _0£'g00'8  $ SE€2'651'2 S 858'20¢ S 0¢L60E6 S OOV LIEZL $ vP0B96SL

€. 8 *9
(I I 2 |

LI SN S M

621'v2TT 825'881'C 2192199 SHEILEL
oes'ezl's  $ zZpiizi's § €8L'BE9S  §  IE6'pSET

S12'62eL
1zz'zel't

- paubsseur
= paubissy
- PIRIILIOD
* PIpUISSY
- sjqepuadsuon
£5¥'5EE'8 paaasafy
S egv'ave g pansasay
pung [eisusg

4514

(113174 8002 8002 100z

5002

S00Z

SYVIA TVISId NIL 1SV
SANN4 TVINIWNYIA0D "SIONVIVE ONNd

VIOHYO039 ‘MONMONW 40 ALID



{penupuog)
Oby'SEe 188925 8512 av8'igE 18208 ZIGLOES 9682501 0LLIiv'e SEEGLL 9zZL'LiT {sasn} saunos
Bupueuy Jayio €101
{L9v'68G) {5€£'945) 0182ty (810'155) {22£7050'1) (0892L0'L) (885550t} {45V'650'L} (zige6L} {161'592) 0 siBjsuRl
S0L°2€8 089'545 058'v9y ovz'oLs 126 8’81t opL'eLZ'L 111952 LyT'VE6 £26'2v0'L Up SI3fSUSIL
= 29459 81281 $29'201 28811 GOLL 8L2'606 oLL'GIZ'e 0098 - sjosse jeides
1O 3{es 3y} wey SPA3A0IY
961'262 ¥8L'19y = = =] 000'seL's = = = - 33UENSSI PUOq WY SPIJVUG
- - - . - - - - - - 199p Jo 3auenss)
{sasn) seounos Sunueuy JBYID
(zge'est'e) {€9p'862) 08'951"L 669'8LV'L {S69'pRE'S) (085 vPE'Y) (r8'9.1'S) {59£'0€2'}) 218'96E 80C 0L} SUN}PUIXD JSA0
Sanuanai jo {Aouamyop) sSaaxg
vEV'Z3p Tl 88v'PE0'ZL Z52588'2L £1£965'2L 89L6VZ 6L 28 Iv8'Sy £42°168 61 892’68 Lt £G2°146'6 90v'096'9 saunjipuadxa jejo}
N " - = 5 0SS'EEL = 2 . - 51500 SoUEnSS! puog
120'8E} SPE'6LL §9.'122 v19'122 12e'0ee zis'er 288'8y 816°0S 952'eS LOE'LY safieyo [E0sY pue 53R
199'959'L 69¥'29¢"L 116'982'L 82€'39 $i8'e9 o0Lp'L9 960'6S $00'LS TLYS £99'28 jedpuug
SoIes 1q8g
26108 £15'8¢ 85192 oL 9BY'SES'S £85'211's : 2 3 s 1 AEANQ jeide]
goe'ize vL8'v0E 621°00¢ oeL'1LT 891°561 Z56'E9L 85e'98t POv'981 S6Y0LL 290'181 juawdojaAsp MUOUCS3
SYLTVZ'L L9515 281°G1L'2 156660 sLiee' 96870P'T 8£0'0L0°L £9£'5102 GS60LL"L 020's8L'L SHIOM JYjqngd
816'180'9 age'LLL'g 869'692'9 GIL'6L5'9 £01'502'9 $09'945'9 905°20¢'9 829'LpS's £PELE8Y FRO'COL'Y Aayes oang
218'902 £16'00¢ PeypLY £05'C8¢E ObE'PSE 129'28¢ 856'ZLE szZT'I6 FAL VAL yG6'281 {eipnp
Z19'PR6'Z ZEP'182'2 $56°902'2 SLE'Ear'e 061'E6E'Y YSE'22E'Y 627'908'S 999'0£5'c 9958282 LSE'6¥0'L (3 WBLILIBACE (B13USY
BN
‘saunypuadxy
2y0°S0E 1L GZO'GEE 1L ZVLI'E6A'EL ZLO'SEEEL ELYVSZ 2L 256'206°11 8ZEPLL L £05 PrE 0L $90°'896 6 $19°0/E8 sanuana: [@ja)
09222 SOl 82102 €091 282'8Y PPO'SE 080°€81 9zy 20t G886 756'gvL sanuaAll PYO
£82'SS £65'92 ySS'ES 628'9L 00522 oiLz'at £02'SoL 18L'vE gez'se 020'28 Bwodul [BUaY
051’9 £56's 185’y €882 L1291 9zZL'9L 4184 155952 16¥'682'L 786'¥5C SanusAss SIS
000084t 090'4942 125029 £6£'00€'C 229'v982 zsg'ese'e 160'08€C 0L6'TY9T 002182t 26€'248 S99 pue ‘SANiap0; ‘sauld
ge8'9c9 £15'659 £TB'SLL 215069 86b'vag Y0L'Z4L £v9'989 828029 185268 cog'spy’L $39) Asppuely
LISTR'Z $90'242'2 0Z2'U6'T 9L0'128'S 8IS 086c86 GEE'LES'E CIEPLY 8EESEY 198'08S [BusunLRA0RIRN)
8E2'0£0'L €20'000'L 846'950°L 289260t £YE'L20' £48'520't 9EY'962'Y £EL'PITY SLLPPEL 0p0's0e't Siuad pue Sasusar
£90'2Lp 1SP'86E 6¥0°'L56 21£'296 SS6'0EL'L 299'S06 LBE'SYS 0Lc L8y 6291y 66009 saorues 10) safiey)d
STLRLLT £06'2542 2E0'7€9' $8E'9¥8'C 200'4$5°2 8890292 LI6'¥EST 022’9692 Pr'PEe'T 8E1'E95'2 S@XE] J3YI0
BSY'B6EZ S 6V¥'968'L $  90C'0:6't arL'eze’t §  Zvo'tr't S0€'265'L  §  LL1'viQl 126'L2'L £08'ErL’e 192'960'c  § (@ S9%e) Auadoig
1S3NUIASY
yioz £102 Z10Z 1102 0oz 6002 8002 2002 9002 $002
SYVYIA TVOSId N2L 1SV

SANMd TVINIWNYIAOD ‘SIONYTVE ANNS NI SSONYHO

VISU039 ‘MOYYOW 40 ALID



“1eaf ay; Buunp (puey Agsow) siesse [epdes jo sseyaund pauueld ay) o) AeaueElsqns AP 900z Buunp saMpPuadxs [EIUBWWSACE [eisusl uj eseasnu)
"S00Z Jeak [eosy jpun AD au) Aq pais) jou arem saxe; Apadod
'§00T 1894 {295y w SuruuiBaq uonouny oyrads Aq pasuadxa sem depng jepden -

%9l %eL'tL %9LCL %S9C %89 %804 %ZLL %0eL %801 %Syt samppuadxa [Edea-uou
Jo abejuanad e se a0wuss 193Q

ﬁvm ..No“ ¢ (e8s'zee) $ 8rZ0eet $ e62eus€y S (iv'v0B'9) §  Z2EUS6 $ (8v6'801'¥) S SOOISL'L $§ IbITUS S pE62891 S SaouBjeq pun) uj abueyd 1N
= S $ ¢ s {gizeva) g - L= g = $ s - $ - 3 wa)) |epadg

02 £10Z zL02 L0z 0102 8002 8002 2002 9002 5002

SHVIA TTVISId N3L LSV
SANNA TYINIWNYIAOD ‘STONVYIVE ANNd NI SSONVYHO

VIDHO3I9 ‘MOYYONW 40 ALID



‘pRjussaid 8 uoieuLOju JO SIEaA BUjU iSE) By AjU0 ‘AUCjBYY "POOT 1Hun Saxe} Anadaid BuRd3[os LIEIS 10U PP MOWOW JO ANg ay) 'JLON
JBUOISSIUWIS] X4 Ajuno uolie)y somnog

%0p §80°269'259 056 v£8'8£0'192 {Sse'spp've) gv8'959 ey 050°6Z4'LL = v9v'0L0'881 28L'€2L'TS €102
%0V £62'PE0'L99 5L L12'€18'99Z {265'096'9¢} LEL'26Z'SY 061’1611 = #80'98€'261 606'668'9S zi02
%0V S£2°918'669 05°L v62'£25'122 {885's.8'vh) 6rL'6VZ'SY 090°95£'0L - 906'260'861 291'602'89 1102
%0p 8¥L'SOL L pL 009 650'99b'962 {910'022'2Lv} 56L'LLE'SY 002'259'tL = 591°28E'EY2 SLY'ELL'EL 002
%0 £66'SpL'208 009 26£'860'12¢ {958'560'55) LY LED'SY 0SP'LI9'EL i 156'819'1€2 29ETES Ve 6002
%0y 9£8°692'8v8 00s §£6'208'6EE {682'025'28} L95'0vE'SY 0LO'00Z'EL % VE2' 180202 TLE'GSZ'LE 8002
%0y 889°'128'0¢8 00'S SL9'9VETEE {0se't0p'cs} S0p'289'9p 09E'19€°2L » 206'LE0'0¥2 £5E'€90'98 2002
%0v €28'888'S6L 00's 625'esE'81E {020'80v"1L9) 109'881 'SP OLL'66F'LL ~ 192'209'8€Z 1292y've 9002
%0V 8€5'559'6vL § QOV §1z'zos'e6z  §  {989'teeebl §  Lv2'66Z'Zy $§  0BSOIGLL § - S  £I6289'222 S 6048129 $ S002
anjep INWA Ijey xey anjep Auadoig [eay Auadoid SIIUDA SaWOH {maRwwo) jenuapIsay FCETN
femay jo Sigexel jemay 30841 jeIoL passassy jdwaxg leuossag iojol 3ol 183B1g
abejuassag paRwnSy aiqexe] fmio), X2} 5897 BYO Apadoug jeay xael
2 SE anjep
passassy

SHVIA 1S3OIA XVL ININ LSV
Al¥3d0O¥d 378VXVL 40 INTVA TYNLOY GILVINILSI ONY INTVA 3SSIASSY

VIDH039 ‘MOYNON 40 ALID



CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

PROPERTY TAX RATES
LAST TEN TAX DIGEST YEARS
City of Morrow
Tax Oparating Total State Clayton School Total
Digest Year Millage Direct Rate of Georgla County District Millage Rate

2004 4.000 4,000 0.250 6.882 18.918 30.048
2005 4.000 4.000 0.250 7.781 18.916 30.947
2006 §.000 5.000 0.250 8.764 20.000 34.014
2007 5.000 5.000 0.250 8.535 19.836 33.621
2008 5.000 5.000 0.250 11.436 19.836 36.522
2008 6.000 6.000 0.250 11.436 20.000 37.686
2010 6.000 6.000 0.250 11.436 20.000 37,686
2011 7.500 7.500 0.250 15.813 20.000 43,563
2012 7.500 7.500 0.200 14.912 20.000 42,612
2013 9.500 9.500 0.150 14.661 20.000 44.311

Source: Clayton County Tax Commissioner

NOTE: The City of Morrow did not slart collecting properly taxes until 2004. Therefore, prior to 2004, there was a zero tax rate for the City of
Morrow.
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

2013 (Tax Digest Year) 2004 (Tax Digest Year)
Percentage Percentage
of Total City of Total City
Taxable Taxable Taxabla Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Asgsessed

Taxpayer Value Rank Value Value Rank Value
Southlake Mall, LLC $ 16,560,000 1 6.29% $ 27,908,600 1 9.29%
USPG Portfolio Three LLC 10,189,650 2 3.87%
Paccear Inc 7,678,172 3 2.92% 5,471,115 9 1.82%
Southlake Attanta LLC 7,594,280 4 2.88%
Realty Income Partners 7,363,400 5 2.80%
Comcast of Georgia, Inc 7,345,118 6 2,79%
Sherwin Williams 6,654,921 7 2.53% 6,147,494 5 2.05%
Costeo 6,537,503 8 2.48% 7,362,696 3 2.45%
Scott H Lee as Trustee 6,019,200 9 2.29% 6,073,621 7 2.02%
Georgia Power 4,676,002 10 1.78%
Inland Southeast 16,137,200 2 5.37%
Inland Southeast Southlake 6,085,000 6 2.03%
Rich's Real Estate Inc. 7,041,200 4 2.34%
OLP Southlake 5,640,000 8 1.88%
Secured Prop Investors 5,373,183 10 1.79%
ALL OTHERS 182,659,002 69.38% 207,223,216 68.97%
Total $ 263,277,248 100.00% $ 300,464,325 100.00%

Source: Clayton County Tax Commissioner




CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS

Errors, Collected within the Fiscal  Collectlons in

Fiscal Taxes Releases or Adjusted Year of the Levy Subsequent Total Collections 1o Date

Yeaar Levied Adjustmants Tax Levy Amount % of Levy Years Amount % of Levy
2008 1,066,274 $ 1984 S 1,068,258 § 1,051,898 98.47% $ 16,360 1,068,258 100.00%
2007 1,366,192 14,787 1,380,979 1,344,975 97.38% 36,004 1,380,979 100.00%
2008 1,520,833 (19,307} 1,501,626 1,483,899 98.82% 17,727 1,501,626 100.00%
2009 1,550,823 (11,614) 1,539,209 1,497,633 97.30% 41,576 1,539,209 100.00%
2010 1,697,259 21,699 1,718,958 1,636,993 95.23% 75,236 1,712,229 99.61%
2011 1,567,965 (11,688) 1,556,277 1,501,774 96.50% 47,108 1,548,883 99.52%
2012 1,869,436 (18,422) 1,851,014 1,805,744 97.55% 36,126 1,841,870 99.51%
2013 1,765,760 {5,992) 1,759,768 1,698,692 96.53% 31,494 1,730,186 98.32%
2014 2,174,364 (64,012) 2,110,352 2,051,663 97.22% - 2,051,663 97.22%

Note: The City of Morrow did not levy property taxes prior fo fiscal year 2005.
Source: Cily tax records.
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RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

Note: Details regarding the City's long term debt can be found in the noles to the financial statements.
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LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Percantage
Governmental Activitles of Estimated Porsonat
Total Actual Value  Percentage Incomea
Fiscal Revenue Capltal Primary of Taxable of Personal Per {thousands
Year Bonds Leases Govarnment Property Income Capita of dollars)  Population
2005 - 1,400,066 1,400,066 047% 1.63% 286.78 85,650 4,882
2006 - 1,345,340 1,345,340 0.45% 1.57% 276,57 85,650 4,882
2007 . 1,288,336 1,288,336 0.40% 1.50% 263.90 85,650 4,882
2008 - 1,229,240 1,229,240 0.37% 1.44% 251.79 85,650 4,882
2009 5,135,000 1,167,830 6,302,830 1.86% 7.36% 1,281.03 85,650 4,882
2010 5,135,000 1,104,015 6,239,015 1.94% 7.28% 1,277.96 85,650 4,882
2011 5,135,000 1,037,687 6,172,687 2.08% 4.98% 957.75 123.905 6,445
2012 3,915,000 968,776 4,883,776 1.76% 3.86% 751.93 126,614 6,495
2013 2,655,000 1,328,101 3,983,101 1.49% 3.01% 580.71 132,475 6,859
2014 1,350,000 1,468,636 2,818,636 1.08% 2.13% 419.75 132615 6,715



CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Total net debt

Amount of applicable to

Assessed value outstanding debt thelimitas a

Fiscal Year of taxable Debt Limit (10% of applicable to dabt Legal debt percentage of

Endad June 30, property d value} limit margin debt limit

2005 $ 300,464,325 S 30,046,433 $ 1,400,066 $ 28,646,367 4.66%
2006 298,862,215 29,986,222 1,345,340 28,640,882 4.49%
2007 318,355,528 31,835,553 1,288,336 30,547,217 4.05%
2008 332,348,675 33,234,868 1,229,240 32,005,628 3.70%
2009 338,307,935 33,930,794 6,302,830 27,627,964 18.58%
2010 321,008,397 32,109,840 6,239,015 25,870,825 19.43%
2011 286,466,059 29,646,606 6,172,687 23,473,919 20.82%
2012 277,527,294 27,762,729 4,883,776 22,868,953 17.60%
2013 266,813,717 26,681,372 3,983,101 22,698,271 14.93%
2014 261,078,834 26,107,883 2,818,636 23,289,247 10.80%
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT
AS OF JUNE 30, 2014

Percantage Amount
Applicable to Applicable to
Debt the City of the City of
Jurlsdiction Qutstanding Morrow ¥ Morrow
Clayton County, Georgia- Overlapping Debl
Capilal leases payable $ 8,493,246 4.42% $ 375,123
Revenue bonds payable 40,073,319 4.42% 1,769,828
Subtotal Overlapping Debt 2,145,052
City of Morrow, Georgia- Direct Debt 2,818,836
Total Direct and Qverlapping Debt

Sources: Assessed value dala used to estimate applicable percentages provided by the County. Debt outstanding provided by the County
(as of June 30, 2014) and City Finance Departments.

Note: Overlapping govemments are those that coincide, at least in part, wilh the geographic boundaries of the City. This schedule
estimates the poriion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that could place burden on the residents and businesses of
the City of Morrow. This process recognizes that, when considering the govermnment's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the enlire
debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account,

@ The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimaled using he assessed gross digest. Applicable percentages were estimated by

determining the partion of the Cily's assessed taxable value that is within the County's boundaries and dividing it by the County's lotal gross
digest.
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscat Personal Per Capita Median Unemployment School

Year Population Income Personal Income Age Rate'¥ Enroliment
2005 4,882 85,649,808 17,544 © 30.50 5.40% 1,312
2006 4,882 85,649,808 17,544 @ 3050 5.40% 1,312
2007 4,882 ¥ 85,640,808 17,544 3p.s0 5.40% 1312
2008 4,882 85,649,808 " 17,544 ao.s0 5.80% 1,312
2009 4,882 85,649,808 17,544 O 30,50 10.00% 1,313
2010 4,882 85,649,808 17,544 O 3050 © 10.00% 1,313
2011 6,445 @ 123,805,125 @ 19225 @ 3110 @ 10.40% 1,214
2012 6,495 @ 126,613,530 © 19,494 @ 31.10 @ 8.80% 1,214
2013 6,859 © 132,474,726 © 19,314 ® 31.10 ©® 8.80% 1,339
2014 6,715 @ 132,614,535 @ 19.749 3390 @ 5.80% 1,339

Sources:

4.8, Census Bureau - 2000 Census
@ 1.8, Census Bureau - 2010 Census
@ Morrow QuickFacts from US Census Bureau updated 9/18/2012
“ y.s. Department of Labar Stalistics
! Claylan County Board of Education
® Morrow QuickFacts from US Census Bureau updated 6/27/2013
@ Morrow QuickFacts from US Census Bureat updated 12/4/2014
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

TEN LARGEST EMPLOYERS IN MORROW
CURRENT YEAR AND EIGHT YEARS AGO

Business

Clayton State University
Wal-Mart Super Center

Macy's

Costco

Cracker Barrel

Sears

Berry Plastics

Olive Garden

TGl Friday's

Joe's Crab Shack

TJ Maxx

Sherwin Williams

JC Penney

Besibuy

Burlington Goat Factory
Bames and Noble

Source: City records.

2014 2008
Percentage of Parcentage of
Number of Total County Number of Total County
Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment

659 1 10.61%

319 2 5.14% 477 1 6.12%

220 3 3.54% 141 4 1.81%

123 4 1.98% 115 6 1.48%

102 5 1.64% 110 7 1.41%

90 6 1.45% 134 5 1.72%
90 6 1.45%
80 7 1.29%
75 8 1.21%
63 9 1.01%
60 10 0.97%

325 2 4.17%

213 3 2.73%

107 8 1.37%

60 9 0.77%

59 0 0.76%

Information prior 1o 2006 was not available.
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

FULL TIME EQUIVALENT CITY EMPLOYEES BY DEPARTMENT

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Fiscal Year Ended General Police Fire
June 30, Government Department Department Inspections E-811 Total
2005 26 36 27 1 10 100
2006 27 39 29 1 12 108
2007 33 37 34 1 12 117
2008 40 39 37 1 15 132
2009 3 36 38 1 14 120
2010 25 35 33 1 12 106
2011 26 34 40 1 12 113
2012 27 32 33 1 1 104
2013 26 32 33 1 11 103
2014 25 32 a3 1 11 102

Sources: Various City Departments
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

PUBLIC SAFETY OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Function 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Police
Citations issued 7,503 10,352 14,055 22,185 22096 13,561 15,468 8,478 7.124 5673
DUI Citations issued 48 76 124 260 108 122 94 43 50 34
Warnings issued 2,297 3,638 3,880 770 8577 10,220 12455 8,521 5,203 1,350
Crime Stalistics:
Aggravated Assault 18 8 13 8 9 14 10 3 1 7
Auto Theft 138 98 64 68 65 57 49 56 45 46
Murder - 1 1 “ “ - . - - -
Rape 3 - - 4 2 . 2 2 1 1
Robbery 32 33 33 24 21 13 21 12 27 20
Burglary 54 51 45 65 74 57 66 64 56 31
Theft 1,021 762 766 970 814 683 710 867 889 502
Flre
Incident responses 1,966 1,978 2,100 2,000 1,963 2120 2,213 2,008 1,937 2,030
Public Safety Education
Events 78 113 115 1156 112 113 114 1M 106 115

Persons contacted 3,836 16,621 17,115 17,425 16,498 17.915 15,976 15,032 14,998 15,490

Source: City police and fire department records
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Function/Program
Police

Stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Zone offices 1 1 1 4 1 1 1 1 1 1

Patro! units 3 35 43 43 43 43 43 43 43 43
Fire stations 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Public works

Streets (miles) 29 31 34 34 34 34 34 34 34 34

Streetlights 700 768 861 861 861 861 861 861 861 861
Parks and recreation

Acreage 82 85 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125

Playgrounds 6 8 11 1 11 1" 11 1" 11 11

Sources: Various City deparimentis.
Note: No capital asset indicators are available for ihe general govemment functions.
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Fiscal Year Ended Reslidential Residential Commercial Commercial
June 30, Permits Issuad Value Permits Issued Value

2005 35 $ 4,203,585 30 4,148,642
2006 109 14,787,743 42 8,675,754
2007 49 7,654,925 44 5,657,668
2008 31 4,210,893 32 3,472,189
2009 13 148,762 17 2,015,804
2010 39 155,689 291 6,169,072
2011 51 114,354 185 3,137,092
2012 96 257,644 204 2,913,384
2013 218 5,091,743 236 8,528,004
2014 253 13,798,230 348 6,783,923

Source: City's Planning and Zoning Depariment.
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AULDIN
& JENKINS

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, LLC

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Morrow, Georgia
Morrow, Georgia

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Morrow, Georgia (the “City") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued
our report thereon dated December 30, 2014.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the City's internal control.

A deficiency in interal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an abjective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

et ¢ Gotinar, 5

Macon, Georgia
December 30, 2014
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CITY OF MORROW, GEORGIA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

SECTION
SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS
Financial Statements
Type of auditor's report issued Unmadified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified? _yes _X _no
Reportable conditions identified not considered
to be material weaknesses? ____yes _X_none reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? ___yes _X_no

Federal Awards
There was no audit of major federal award programs as of June 30, 2014 due to the total amount of federal
expenditures being less than $500,000 during the fiscal year 2014

SECTION 1l
FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS AND RESPONSES

None reported.

SECTION Iil
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

None reported.
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